Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  117 Botchergate 
Carlisle  CA1 1RD 
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

2 July 2021

To:

The Members of the County Council Local
Committee for Barrow

Agenda
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR BARROW
A meeting of the County Council Local Committee for Barrow will be held as follows:
Date:
Time:
Place:

Monday 12 July 2021
10.30 am
Museum Room, 1st Floor, Barrow Library, Ramsden
Square, Barrow-in-Furness LA14 1LL

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Lynn Harker
Direct Line:
07825340229
Email:
lynn.harker@cumbria.gov.uk
This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria

MEMBERSHIP
Labour (6)

Conservative (5)

Mrs A Burns
Mr F Cassidy
Mr KR Hamilton
Mr W McEwan
Mrs H Wall
Mr MH Worth

Mr D English
Mr D Gawne
Mr B Shirley
Mr S Wielkopolski
Mr R Worthington

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Agenda and Reports
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect
prior to the meeting. Copies will also be available at the meeting.
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –
www.cumbria.gov.uk
Background Papers
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

AGENDA
PART 1:

1

ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS
AND PUBLIC

ELECTION OF CHAIR

To elect a Chair of the Local Committee for the ensuing year.
2

ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR

To elect a Vice-Chair of the Local Committee for the ensuing year.
3

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
4

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item
on the agenda which comprises
1

Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

2

Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your
election expenses. (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

3

Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have
a beneficial interest) and the authority
(a)

Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and

(b)

Which has not been fully discharged.

4

Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.

5

Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of
the authority for a month or longer.

6

Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)
(a)

The landlord is the authority; and

(b)
7

The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
(a)

That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of
the authority; and

(b)

Either –
(i)

The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii)

If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of
Conduct where these have not already been registered.
Note
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil
partners).
5

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of any item on the agenda.
6

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There are no public questions, statements or petitions relating to the business of the
Committee on this occasion.
7

MINUTES

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on
10 March 2021 (copy enclosed).
(Pages 7 - 14)

8

BARROW HIGHWAYS ADVISORY SUB-GROUP

[Electoral Divisions: All Barrow]
To consider a report by the Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure (copy
enclosed).
This report gives recommendations for approval by Barrow Local Committee from the
Highways Advisory Sub-Group meetings held on 9 April and 11 June 2021.
(Pages 15 - 74)
9

BARROW AREA PLANNING REPORT

[Electoral Divisions: All Barrow]
To consider a report by the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community
Services (copy enclosed).
This report provides Local Committee with an update on its work and agreed activity
since the last meeting of the Committee. It also includes a financial statement in support
of the work of the Local Committee for Members’ information.
(Pages 75 - 96)
10

LOCAL COMMITTEE CHAIRS AND LEADERSHIP MEETINGS

To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Local Committee Chairs and Leadership
meetings held on 29 January and 27 April 2021 (copies enclosed).
(Pages 97 - 108)
11

REPORTS FROM MEMBERS SERVING ON OUTSIDE BODIES

To enable local members to give verbal reports on and share information in respect of
outside bodies to which they have been appointed.
12

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next scheduled meeting will take place on Friday 17 September 2021 at 10.30 am
at a venue to be agreed.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR BARROW
Minutes of a virtual Meeting of the County Council Local Committee for Barrow held
on Wednesday, 10 March 2021 at 10.30 am.

PRESENT:
Mr KR Hamilton (Chair)
Mrs A Burns
Mr F Cassidy
Mr D English
Mr D Gawne

Mr W McEwan (Vice-Chair)
Mrs H Wall
Mr MH Worth
Mr R Worthington

Also in Attendance:Mrs L Harker
Ms T Ingham
Mr R Lewis
Mrs A Meadows
Mr K Tetchner

-

Senior Democratic Services Officer
Area Manager - Barrow
Traffic Manager
Community Development Officer
Local Area Highways Network Manager

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

55

ROLL CALL FOR MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

It was noted that all of the above members and officers were present at the meeting.
56

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence on this occasion.
57

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest made on this occasion.
58

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the meeting during
consideration of any item of business.

7

59

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There were no questions, statements or petitions relating to the business of the
Committee on this occasion.
60

MINUTES

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2021 be
confirmed as a correct record.
61

PARKING SERVICES REPORT

Members received a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which detailed the activity of the Parking Team for the first ten months
of this financial year, 2020/21.
The Committee was informed that much of this period was during the three
lockdown periods of the current pandemic. It was explained that during the first
lockdown in April and May, proactive enforcement was reduced and the parking
enforcement officers were redeployed to assist local communities. Members noted
that during the two latter lockdowns in November and January/February
enforcement had returned in line with the national advice.
Members were informed that the Parking Team had recruited a new Parking Team
Leader for the Barrow area, a former officer who had experience in patrolling the
Barrow area and there was an ongoing recruitment process to employ additional
civil enforcement officers for the area.
The Committee raised their concerns regarding the traffic problems caused by food
delivery drivers operating in Barrow Town Centre. Members were informed that a
joint campaign was being undertaken with Cumbria Constabulary to share
resources to try and resolve some of the issues which were being caused. During
the course of discussion it was suggested that deliveries from McDonald’s Food
Outlet could take place from their Hollywood Park premises where there was
sufficient parking available rather than the town centre. The Traffic Manager agreed
to ask the Area Manager of McDonald’s to consider this proposal.
The Traffic Manager confirmed that following issues previously raised regarding
parking permits for Navy personnel, liaison had taken place with the Royal Navy and
short term parking permits were now issued.

8

The Committee was informed that at present only warning notices were issued for
expired residents’ parking permits and that full enforcement would resume on
29 March. During the course of discussion concerns were raised regarding
residents who did not have access to IT to enable them to renew their permits. It
was confirmed the onus was on the resident to obtain a permit renewal and they
could also be requested via post or telephone and would be issued within 2/3 days.
Members were informed of a new School Streets Initiative pilot to discourage the
use of vehicles near schools. The Traffic Manager explained that following dialogue
with officers it had been agreed that this would take place at Askam Village School.
Whilst the Committee welcomed this Initiative they raised their concerns that this
had not initially been discussed with members at the Barrow Highways Sub-Group.
It was, therefore, agreed that a report would be considered at the next meeting of
the Barrow Highways Sub-Group.
The Chair, on behalf of the Committee, thanked the Traffic Manager and his Team
for the invaluable work they had undertaken during the current pandemic.
RESOLVED, that

62

(1)

the report be noted;

(2)

a report on the Schools Streets initiative be considered at the
next meeting of Barrow Highways Sub-Group.

BARROW LOCAL COMMITTEE PROVISIONAL DEVOLVED HIGHWAYS
CAPITAL AND REVENUE PROGRAMME 2021/22

Members received a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which sought approval of the Provisional Devolved Highways Capital
and Revenue Programmes 2021/22, including prioritised lists of schemes, which
would form the basis of the Local Committee’s Devolved Highways Revenue and
Capital Programme for 2020/21 and provided a core Devolved Capital Programme
for future years subject to annual review. Members noted that the allocation for
2021/22 was £1,357,000 for the Devolved Capital and £793,576 for the Devolved
Revenue budgets.
Members were informed that following a reduction in the NPRN budget it was still
anticipated that the full Programme of Works would be undertaken. The Local Area
Highways Network Manager would provide an updated report at the next meeting of
Barrow Highways Advisory Sub-Group.
The Committee was informed that following a procurement exercise the contract for
weed spraying in the Barrow area had been awarded to the previous contractor
Empire Group Care.
RESOLVED, that the proposed Devolved Highways Capital and Revenue
Programmes for 2021/22 (as set out in the Appendices to the report)
be approved.

9

63

DEVOLVED HIGHWAYS CAPITAL AND REVENUE UPDATE 2020/21

The Committee considered a report by the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which detailed the Highways Revenue and Devolved Capital and NonDevolved Capital budget finance reports and updated members as to current
progress on those budget lines.
Members noted that the original Devolved Highways Revenue and Capital budgets
were £782,608 and £1,323,034 respectively. It was explained that a carry forward
of the under or accelerated spend during 2019/20 was approved at a meeting of full
Council in June 2020 which had altered the Revenue and Capital budget lines to
£849,635 and £1,179,802 respectively.
The Committee was informed that budget underspends would be used for thermal
patching; this would be mainly the back streets but would also include a small
number of front streets. It was explained that if this process was successful it was
anticipated that further work would be undertaken during the summer. It was
agreed that the programme of works for the patching would be circulated to
members to afford them the opportunity to survey the works being undertaken.
The Local Area Highways Network Manager also explained that part of the
underspend would be used to cleanse the drains in the area which were the
responsibility of the Authority.
The Chair, on behalf of the Committee, thanked the Local Area Highways Network
Manager and his Team for the exemplary work they had undertaken together with
the additional duties they had carried out during the current pandemic.
RESOLVED, that the revenue and capital budget allocations for 2020/21 and the
commitments and expenditure recorded to the end of January 2021
(as shown in Appendices 1, 2 and 3 of the report) be noted.
64

BARROW HIGHWAYS ADVISORY SUB-GROUP

The Committee considered a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which gave details of the discussion and recommendations of the
Highways Advisory Sub-Group for the Barrow area which met on 16 February 2021.
The local Member for Walney North asked if a response had been received from the
Chief Constable about the concerns which had been raised with her regarding the
enforcement of 20 mph speed limits. The Chair of the Sub-Group confirmed a reply
was still awaited and it was agreed this would be followed up.
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 16 February 2021 be noted.

10

65

BARROW AREA PLANNING REPORT

The Committee considered a report from the Executive Director – Corporate,
Customer and Community Services which detailed information from across the
Community teams including Community Development, sport and physical activity
and libraries; it provided an update on work and agreed activity since the last
meeting of the Committee.
Members received an update on the COVID response and noted that the Barrow
Resilience Group continued to meet fortnightly and co-ordinate work and resources
as required. The Committee was informed that the Community Team continued to
work with and support the Resource Distribution Points noting that, although the
Points still provided a response service it was important to start to look at recovery.
The Committee welcomed the Food and Support partnership which had now been
established and included the Resource Points together with wider partners and
agencies. The Area Manager explained the aim of the joined up approach and
building on the trust and relationships established, was to help to prevent
dependency and alleviate pressure on the Resource Points and a focus on
‘community-led recovery’ which would enable people to become more resilient and
communities more sustainable.
Members received an update on the Barrow Town Deal noting that a Project Group,
whose membership included a range of partners and elected members, had been
established for each Scheme. It was agreed that full updates would continue to be
provided to members at future Informal Local Committee meetings.
The local Member for Ormsgill informed the Committee that following a request for
further information about the future of a post office service in Ormsgill following its
closure in March 2020 a successful meeting had taken place with local members,
the MP, a representative from the Post Office and a member of the Community
Team to look at providing this service from Ormsgill Community Centre.
The Committee was informed that the Children’s Trust Board - Barrow Children &
Families Partnership had received a number of useful presentations from partners
and service providers at its meeting in January. Members noted that a small
Working Group had been established to look at developing an action plan regarding
how to share information and address current issues. Members would receive
updates at future meetings of the Committee.
The Vice-Chair of the Children’s Trust Board, Mrs A Burns, welcomed the work
being undertaken and emphasised the crucial need for early help to try and avoid
families going into crisis. Members were informed that work was being undertaken
with members of the Community Team to maintain the partnership approach which
had already been established.
The Chair, on behalf of the Committee, congratulated the Barrow Community Team
for the outstanding work they had undertaken and asked that their thanks and
appreciation be passed on.

11

RESOLVED, that

66

(1)

the updates in the report be noted;

(2)

the revised Highways Advisory Sub Group Terms of
Reference (attached at Appendix 1 to the report) be agreed;

(3)

funding of £5,000 to the Borough Council to support a
Poverty Truth Commission from General Provisions (as
outlined in paragraph 4.75 I of the report) be agreed;

(4)

funding Walney Community Trust (as outlined in paragraph
4.75 ii of the report) be agreed for 3 months of staffing costs
at:
(i)

£4,280 from the Local Committee Covid 19 Response
Fund;

(ii)

£2,816 from General Provisions;

(5)

a grant of £16,042 to Dropzone on behalf of Furness Youth
Work Partnership towards youth work provision from
Universal Services funding (as detailed in paragraph 4.75 ii of
the report be agreed;

(6)

a grant of £9,000 to Furness Young Carers towards young
carers after-school club from Universal Services funding
(referred to in paragraph 4.75 iii of the report) be agreed;

(7)

a grant of £2,500 to Brill Books towards mental health books
into each Primary, Secondary School, and 3 rd sector
organisations in the Barrow Borough outlined in report from
0-19 Services funding (as detailed in paragraph 4.75 iii of the
report) be agreed;

(8)

a grant of £10,000 to The Well to a pilot project for a mobile
unit from 0-19 Services funding (as outlined in paragraph
4.75 iii of the report) be agreed.

REPORTS FROM MEMBERS SERVING ON OUTSIDE BODIES

Mr W McEwan, Chair of the Cumbria Police and Crime Panel informed members
that the Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner’s Proposed precept of 2.47%
(£6.57 for Band D Properties) had been agreed at the meeting in January.

12

67

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that future meetings of the Committee were to be agreed.

The meeting ended at 11.35 am

13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR
BARROW
Meeting date:
From:

12 July 2021

Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure

BARROW HIGHWAYS ADVISORY SUB-GROUP – 9 APRIL
AND 11 JUNE 2021
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report details the discussions and recommendations of 2
Highways Advisory Sub-Group meetings(HASG) for the Barrow Area
which were the meetings on the 9 April 2021 and 11 June 2021. This is
due to the fact the Local Committee planned for May 2021 was
cancelled. It recommends that the Local Area Committee for Barrow
notes the minutes of both the HASG meetings and agree the
recommendations that came forward from both meetings. A copy of
the HASG minutes for both meetings are attached as Appendix 1. A
copy of the reports which went to the HASG are attached as Appendix
2.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

The HASG will help inform and apply the County Highways policy
framework. It will help to meet the County Council’s key objectives of
Greener, Safer, Better, Wealthier and Healthier.

2.2

The HASG will help identify equality implications within proposed
highway and transportation schemes and issues of concern, and will
help prepare more equitable solutions.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

It is recommended that the Barrow Local Committee note the minutes
of the meeting of the Barrow HASG which met on the 9 April 2021 and
11 June 2021, which are attached at Appendix 1. Additionally,

3.2

It is recommended that Barrow Local Committee agree to proceed to
statutory consultation on the proposal to introduce an Experimental
Traffic Order to introduce a “School street” in the Barrow area outside
a specific school plus a reserve school, the effect of which will be to
reduce traffic levels outside of the school during school arrival and
departure times.”

15

3.3

It is also recommended that Barrow Local Committee agree the revised
devolved capital budget and the reallocation of schemes detailed in the
DfT pothole funding allocation for 2021/22 as detailed below;
(1)

Barrow Local Committee approve the revised Devolved Highways
Non Principal Road Network Capital Programme for 2021/22 (as
detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the report);

(2)

Barrow Local Committee consider inclusion of the schemes
detailed above (outlined in paragraph 4.4 of the report) within the
Pothole Capital Funding for 2021/22.

3.4

There were no recommendations arising from the meeting on the
11 June.

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

Meeting 9 April 2021

4.2

At its meeting on the 9 April Barrow Highways Advisory Sub Group (HASG)
received a number of reports and updates reports from a variety of
stakeholders and County Council Officers invited to the meeting.

4.3

The initial report focused on the school street initiative. The Sub-Group was
informed that the Initiative was an idea pioneered by the Sustrans Charity
which aimed to tackle the congestion, poor air quality and road safety
concerns that many schools experienced during drop-off and pick-up times .

4.4

The Barrow Local Committee meeting held on 10 March 2021 had been
made aware of the School Streets Initiative and requested that an
explanatory paper be prepared following notification that Askam School had
been informally approached by officers, although no commitment had been
made, to pilot this Scheme.

4.5

Whilst the Sub Group welcomed the Initiative they emphasised their
concerns regarding the lack of any communication with members regarding
this matter. Following a detailed discussion it was agreed that a separate
informal meeting be convened as soon as possible with members, in
advance of the next meeting of Barrow Local Committee, to discuss and
agree the criteria to be used for this and recommend the schools which it
was felt should be included in the initial pilot, by way of an Experimental
Traffic Order.

4.6

Following this members were given an update on the A595 Grizebeck
project. Members were informed of the strategic priorities and scheme
overview, issues and challenges, funding, scheme objectives, scheme
development stages, routes presented at consultation, updates on progress,
next steps and the key milestone. The Sub group welcomed the update and
thanked officers.

4.7

Members then received a verbal update from Stagecoach on ongoing
operations and issues. A number of concerns were raised regarding parked
cars and congestion and whilst many issues could not be resolved at the
meeting a number were to be looked at going forward.

16

4.8

A further verbal report was then given to members from Cumbria Fire and
Rescue service a number of traffic issues were highlighted. The Sub Group
was informed that road awareness training would be resumed and an
invitation would be extended to members.

4.9

Members then received a presentation from the Flood and Development
Management team which presented an overview of Flood and Development
Management activities in the Barrow area which included current major or
strategic planning applications, details of Section 106 contributions update,
flooding investigations and the flood and development management
planning application procedure. The Sub Group welcomed the information
which had been provided and continued attendance by the Flood and
Development Management Team at future meetings.

4.10

Following this members received a report which sought approval of the
revised Devolved Highways Capital Programme 2021/22, including
prioritised lists of schemes, which would form the basis of the Local
Committee’s Devolved Highways Capital Programme for 2021/22 and
provide a core programme for future years subject to annual review. This
report followed on from budget changes in March which reduced the
available budget by £366,000 to £991,000.

4.11

It was noted to members that the DfT pothole funding allocation was again
available this year and increased on the previous year to a total for Barrow
of £728,000. It was recommended a number of schemes were moved from
the devolved capital budget line into the DfT pothole allocation to the value
of £366,000 thus allowing for a full programme as outlined in earlier draft
reports to be completed this year. Members agreed with this
recommendation.

4.12

Finally the group had discussions on new fleet becoming available for use.
The new Highways Engagement Team that is currently being established
and safety issues around schools.

4.13

Meeting 11 June 2021

4.14

At its meeting on the 11 June Barrow Highways Advisory Sub Group
(HASG) received a number of reports and updates reports from a variety of
stakeholders and County Council Officers invited to the meeting.

4.15

Initially the group received a verbal from Cumbria Police Authority on a
number of issues. Firstly was an issue with the parking around Crellin Street
by Uber eats delivery drivers which was causing concerns. It was agreed
that officers would raise this matter with the Authority’s Parking Team
Leader that both Authorities could coordinate their efforts. The other issue
raised was traffic concerns at Hollywood Park roundabout members
acknowledged this issue and a meeting was agreed to be held to discuss
these ongoing issues and any potential solutions.

4.16

Following this another verbal update was given from Cumbria Fire and
Rescue. The report highlighted inconsiderate parking in rural areas by
drivers, and then a discussion was had regarding issues in the Preston
Street area of the town. It was agreed that the Area Manager would arrange
a site visit which would include a representative from the Authority’s Traffic
Team, Parking Enforcement Team, Roger Exley, Streetcare and elected
members.

17

4.17

The flood and Development Management team then presented a report on
current activities in the Borough. Following this members then raised issues
within their divisions including flooding from Abbey Heights, Cows Tarn Lane
and issues in Stoney Dyke Lane which had now been resolved. Members
noted the report but asked if Thorney Nook Lane could be added into future
reports.

4.18

The Barrow works programme for 2021/22 was then presented to members.
In the following discussions members raised a couple of issues including
replacement of road marking and cats eyes following surface dressing and
the purchase of a pothole repair machine. The Local Area Network Manager
agreed to keep members updated on both issues as information became
available.

4.19

The final report was an update to the group on the Levelling Up Fund bid.
The Sub-Group was informed that following the unsuccessful Future High
Street Fund application in 2020 the application to the LUF had built on the
projects identified in that Bid. It was explained this supported Barrow town
centre as a strategic regeneration priority and focussed around a package of
projects which included improving the Market Hall and The Forum Theatre
as well as enhancing access to those cultural assets/attractions and
connecting them to the rest of the town through better transport
infrastructure and improvements to the public realm.

4.20

The Sub Group was informed of the next steps and noted that preparations
were underway to submit the application. The Leader of the Council and
Chair of the Local Committee would sign a letter supporting the Barrow LUF
application. A number of queries were identified and asked for by members
and the project lead agreed to keep members informed on any progress with
the bid.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

That Local Committee note the Discussions during the Barrow Highways
Advisory Sub Group reports as detailed in this report and agree the
recommendations as detailed in paragraph 3.2 and 3.3 above regarding the
meeting from the 9 April 2021

5.2

Alternatively members may not agree the recommendations made at the
Barrow HASG on the 9 April 2021 and detailed in Paras 3.2 and 3.3 and
discuss alternative solutions.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct resource implication arising from recommendation 3.1 to
note the minutes of the meetings of Barrow HASG which met on the 9 April
2021 and 11 June 2021.

6.2

If recommendation 3.2 is agreed the funding for the proposed consultation,
trial and experimental traffic order would be met from within the successful
bid in respect of the Department for Transport Travel Demand Management
initiative . This funding is not devolved to Local Committee. It is expected
that costs per school for the informal consultation and experimental TRO
signage and infrastructure would be approximately £3,000. Members are

18

requested to note that if subsequently it was agreed to make the
experimental traffic order permanent any future maintenance costs would
need to be met from within the relevant years revenue budget allocation
devolved to Local Committee.
6.3

The non principal road network and pothole funding capital allocations are
devolved to Local Committee to determine and deliver within the overall
capital allocation that Council agrees and in accordance with the Council’s
policies and the overall objectives and as laid out in the current Local
Transport Plan and subject to the DfT terms of the pothole additional stream
(recommendation 3.3).

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are no direct legal implications to the recommendations at paragraphs
3.1 or 3.2.

7.2

Local Committees may, pursuant to Part 2D, paragraph 5.1.2 f) agree and
keep under review the implementation of, the highways revenue budget and
capital programme for the local committee’s area to support the Council to
carry out its statutory duty to maintain the highway in a safe condition as far
as reasonably practicable.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report details the discussions and recommendations of the meetings of
the HASG on 9 April 2021 and the 11 June 2021 and recommends that the
Local Committee note the Minutes of the HASG which is attached as
Appendix 1. It also ask that Local Committee approves the
recommendations as detailed in Paragraphs 3.2 and 3.3 of this report from
the meeting on the 9 April 2021.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
June 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1
Appendix 2

- Minutes of the Barrow HASG 9 April 2021 and 11 June 2021
- Reports to Barrow HASG on 9 April 2021 and 11 June 2021

Electoral Divisions:

All Barrow

Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?

19

N/A

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

N/A

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?
N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
[including Local Committees]
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact:

Keiron Tetchner Keiron.tetchner@cumbria.gov.uk
Tel 01229 407287

20

N/A

APPENDIX 1
BARROW HIGHWAYS ADVISORY SUB-GROUP
Minutes of a Virtual Meeting of the Barrow Highways Advisory Sub-Group held on
Friday, 9 April 2021 at 10.15 am.

PRESENT:
Mr W McEwan (Chair)
Mrs A Burns
Mr F Cassidy (Vice-Chair)
Mr D Gawne

Mr KR Hamilton
Mr MH Worth
Mr R Worthington

Also in Attendance:Mr C Broadbent
Mr D Coyle
Mr M Dooz
Mr A Dunn
Mr R Exley

-

Mr S Giles
Mr M Hammond
Mrs L Harker
Ms T Ingham
Mr K Melville
Mr S Parkinson
Mr K Tetchner

-

Road Safety Co-ordinator
Manager of Flood & Development Management
Traffic Manager Team Leader (Barrow)
Capital Portfolio Manager – Capital Programmes
Station Manager Service Delivery & Apprenticeships Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service
Development Management Officer
Highways Network Officer
Senior Democratic Services Officer
Area Manager - Barrow
Area Highways and Transport Manager
Watch Manager - Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service
Local Area Highways Network Manager

Mr W McPhail attended for agenda item 5 – Update from Stagecoach (minute 87
refers).
83

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Ms S Cordon.
84

MINUTES

With reference to Minute 80 – Barrow Works Programme 2020/21 (enforcement of
20 mph speed limits) the local Member for Walney North informed members that the
Association of Chief Police Officers had produced a Policy on Speed Enforcement in
2015 which specifically mentioned speed enforcement within 20 mph zones:-

21

“To only enforce appropriately placed, signed and engineered 20mph limits if
there are persistent or high-speed offenders, but advised against large scale
or routine enforcement.”
In summary, 20 mph speed limits could be enforced but this would not be carried
out routinely unless there were persistent issues by high-speed offenders. It was
explained there were dedicated Casualty Reduction Officers within the Constabulary
who could provide appropriate advice on this matter and details would be made
available to members.
With reference to Minute 80 – Barrow Works Programme 2020/21 the Chair of the
Local Committee thanked officers for the cycling repair stations. He then referred to
the request for further information regarding the protocol for a zebra crossing and
asked for those details as soon as possible.
The minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Group held on 16 February 2021 were
confirmed as circulated.
85

SAFER SCHOOLS - SCHOOL STREETS INITIATIVE

Members considered a report by the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which introduced the School Streets initiative and was aimed at
reducing traffic levels outside schools during the arrival and departure times.
The Sub-Group was informed that the Initiative was an idea pioneered by the
Sustrans Charity which aimed to tackle the congestion, poor air quality and road
safety concerns that many schools experienced during drop-off and pick-up times .
It was explained that the extent of a ‘School Street’ was typically defined by signs
and supported by cones, which had to be placed and removed each day, therefore,
schools would be asked to arrange the placing of the temporary signs and cones.
Members were informed that not all areas were suitable for this Initiative and
following correspondence with a number of other authorities who had implemented
the Scheme it had been concluded that those schools with the minimum of roads
serving it, together with local support and enthusiasm for the Scheme were the key
to their success.
The Barrow Local Committee meeting held on 10 March 2021 had been made
aware of the School Streets Initiative and requested that an explanatory paper be
prepared following notification that Askam School had been informally approached
by officers, although no commitment had been made, to pilot this Scheme.
Whilst the Sub-Group welcomed the Initiative they emphasised their concerns
regarding the lack of any communication with members regarding this matter.
Following a detailed discussion it was agreed that a separate informal meeting be
convened as soon as possible with members, in advance of the next meeting of
Barrow Local Committee, to discuss and agree the criteria to be used for this and
recommend the schools which it was felt should be included in the initial pilot.

22

RECOMMENDED, that following an informal meeting with members Barrow Local
Committee agree to proceed to informal consultation on the
proposal to introduce a “School Street” in the Barrow area
outside a specific school plus a reserve school, the effect of
which will be to reduce traffic levels outside of the school during
school arrival and departure times.
86

A595 GRIZEBECK - PROJECT UPDATE

The Sub-Group received a presentation from the Capital Portfolio Manager – Capital
Programmes regarding the A595 Grizebeck Improvement.
Members were informed of the strategic priorities and scheme overview, issues and
challenges, funding, scheme objectives, scheme development stages, routes
presented at consultation, updates on progress, next steps and the key milestone.
The Sub-Group noted that the scheme objectives were to support economic growth,
improve connectivity, improve journey time and safety for all road users and
minimise traffic impacts on communities.
Members received an update on progress and were informed that the ecological
surveys were ongoing, the topographical survey had started, the geotechnical
investigation was about to be commissioned with further engagement planned with
the community. It was explained that the preliminary design was being further
developed with connectivity for walking and cycling being a key consideration and
further dialogue was proposed with key landowners in the coming weeks. The
Sub-Group noted that the improvement scheme coincided with a safety scheme in
and around Grizebeck which detailed 50 mph speed limit through Dove Bank, solid
white lines outside the school and 40 mph in Beanthwaite. It was proposed to
develop the preliminary design further and work towards planning a submission in
August 2021 with an anticipated Project end date (ensuring factors such as
retention were taken into account) of August 2025.
The Sub-Group welcomed the Scheme and thanked officers.
87

UPDATE FROM STAGECOACH

Mr McPhail gave an update on the bus network and informed members that a full
service had now resumed and unless there was a further lockdown due to the
current pandemic there was no intention to make any changes in the near future.
A discussion then took place regarding TTROs and whilst Mr McPhail highlighted
the positive communications which took place between Stagecoach and the County
Council he raised his concerns regarding lack of consultation with other utility
companies.

23

He highlighted a recent issue in Dalton where a road closure sign had appeared on
the network for a short period of time without any engagement with the appropriate
utility company. The Local Area Highways Network Manager informed members
this had been an error by the company and that to date no decision had been
agreed regarding the proposed scheme.
During the course of discussion it was confirmed that the ownership of any
consultation was the responsibility of the statutory undertaker and not the County
Council.
Mr McPhail then drew attention to a number of outstanding problems regarding
traffic congestion at designated bus stops caused by illegally parked vehicles. It
was agreed this information would be made available to the Traffic Manager Team
Leader for Barrow who would investigate the matters further. During the course of
discussion it was agreed that the matters should also be raised with the Parking
Enforcement Team.
A concern was also raised regarding the Hollywood Park roundabout and access to
the Park. The Sub-Group was informed that the Local Area Highways Network
Manager was investigating this matter and would keep members informed.
88

UPDATE FROM CUMBRIA POLICE AUTHORITY

This item was withdrawn from the meeting.
89

UPDATE FROM CUMBRIA FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE

Members received a verbal update from Roger Exley, Station Manager Service
Delivery & Apprenticeships, Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service.
Mr Exley echoed the concerns which had been raised regarding traffic congestion at
Hollywood Roundabout and the problems encountered by emergency vehicles. The
Local Area Highways Network Manager explained that proposals to alleviate the
issues had been put forward to the landowner and a response was awaited. It was
agreed that a meeting would be convened with members and officers to discuss this
matter further.
During the course of discussion he also raised safety concerns around the
Household Waste Recycling in Barrow due to the increasing number of vehicles
using the facility. Members agreed with the issues raised and confirmed that
officers were investigating a resolution to the problems.
A discussion took place regarding anti-social behaviour and it was confirmed there
had been an increase in fires in the Barrow area during the pandemic. Members
were informed that a number of issues were due to refuse bins being left on the
highway. It was explained that the Service was part of ‘Operation Furniture’ which
involved a number of partners working together to try and eliminate those issues.

24

The Sub-Group was informed that road awareness training would be resumed and
an invitation would be extended to members.
The Station Manager welcomed the invite to the Sub-Group meeting and it was
agreed this would be extended to future meetings.
90

2021/22 FLOOD AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT

Members received a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which presented an overview of Flood and Development Management
activities in the Barrow area which included current major or strategic planning
applications, details of Section 106 contributions update, flooding investigations and
the flood and development management planning application procedure.
The Sub-Group welcomed the Flood and Development Management Planning
Application Procedure noting that the case officer would issue a response to the
local planning authorities within 21 days of receipt of the consultation of an
application and would send a response for major applications 24 hours in advance
as notification to the local Member.
A discussion took place regarding Section 106 Agreements and officers confirmed
that, in the main, there was a five years warranty for the receipt and spending of this
funding. Members emphasised the importance of education contributions.
The Sub-Group welcomed the information which had been provided and continued
attendance by the Flood and Development Management Team at future meetings.
RECOMMENDED,
91

that the report be noted.

BARROW LOCAL COMMITTEE PROVISIONAL DEVOLVED HIGHWAYS
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22

The Sub-Group received a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which sought approval of the revised Devolved Highways Capital
Programme 2021/22, including prioritised lists of schemes, which would form the
basis of the Local Committee’s Devolved Highways Capital Programme for 2021/22
and provide a core programme for future years subject to annual review. It was
noted that the updated allocation for 2021/22 was £991,000 for the Non Principal
Road Network (NPRN) and pothole funding £728,000.
Members were informed that in order to accommodate the revised figure and
achieve all works detailed on the original provisional Programme it had been
necessary to move a number of identified schemes into alternative pots of funding.
It was explained that to this end the following schemes would be delivered and
funded through the DfT pothole additional funding stream:-

25







Surface Dressing totalling
Carriageway Resurfacing totalling
Footway Reconstruction Totalling
Carriageway Patching Totalling
Total

£91,000
£85,000
£140,000
£50,000
£366,000

RECOMMENDED, that
(1)

Barrow Local Committee approve the revised Devolved
Highways Non Principal Road Network Capital
Programme for 2021/22 (as detailed in Appendices 1
and 2 of the report);

(2)

Barrow Local Committee consider inclusion of the
schemes detailed above (outlined in paragraph 4.4 of
the report) within the Pothole Capital Funding for
2021/22.

92

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

(1)

Karl Melville, the Senior Manager - Highways Delivery updated members on
potholes in the Barrow area. He outlined the new various techniques being
considered by the Authority for implementation to address the issues which
included the JCB Pothole Pro, Nu-phalt Thermal Road Repair and Velocity
Patching, highlighting the significant savings which could be made.
The Sub-Group was informed that a procurement exercise had been
undertaken with regards to obtaining a JCB Pothole Pro which would be
funded centrally but available for use in all six areas of the county. Members
noted that if this was approved the machinery could be available in Cumbria
by late May.
A discussion took place regarding what was considered a reasonable length
of time to repair a pothole. Members were informed there was a target of 10
working days from the initial report to make the fault safe. It was agreed that
the results of a recent public survey regarding performance would be
circulated to members.
During the course of discussion the Sub-Group was informed that a
Highways Engagement Team had recently been established to collate
consistent reports from the HIMS system. It was explained that in future it
was intended to assign individual members of the Team to each local
committee area and it was anticipated they would communicate with each
Elected Member on a monthly basis.

26

(2)

The local Member for Hindpool raised concerns regarding safety outside
schools in her Division and across the whole of the Barrow area highlighting
that the health and safety of children was paramount. Members emphasised
the need for further information regarding the protocol for a zebra crossing as
soon as possible to enable the concerns to be investigated. It was agreed
that the Traffic Management Team Leader, in consultation with members,
would discuss this matter further.

93

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Sub-Group would be held on Friday
11 June 2021 at 10.15 am at a venue to be confirmed.

The meeting ended at 12.35 pm

27

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1
BARROW HIGHWAYS ADVISORY SUB-GROUP
Minutes of a Virtual Meeting of the Barrow Highways Advisory Sub-Group held on
Friday, 11 June 2021 at 10.15 am.

PRESENT:
Mr W McEwan (Chair)
Mrs A Burns
Mr F Cassidy (Vice-Chair)
Mr D Gawne

Mr MH Worth
Mr R Worthington

Also in Attendance:Mr D Chalmers
Mr M Dooz
Mr S Giles
Mrs L Harker
Mr D Haughian
Ms T Ingham
Mr K Tetchner

-

Countywide Highways Network Manager
Traffic Manager Team Leader (Barrow)
Development Management Officer
Senior Democratic Services Officer
Programme Lead
Area Manager - Barrow
Local Area Highways Network Manager

(David Proctor, Cumbria Police Authority and Roger Exley, Cumbria Fire and
Rescue Service attended for minutes 3 and 4 respectively).
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Ms S Cordon and Mr K Hamilton.
2

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Group held on 9 April 2021 were confirmed
as circulated.
3

UPDATE FROM CUMBRIA POLICE AUTHORITY

David Proctor highlighted concerns regarding illegal parking by Uber Eats drivers in
the town centre, explaining that whilst their limited resources of PCSOs could deal
with any criminal activity they were unable to undertake any issues relating to
parking enforcement. It was agreed that officers would raise this matter with the
Authority’s Parking Team Leader and pass on officer contact details to David
Proctor.

29

During the course of discussion concerns were raised regarding an increase in
takeaway food outlets at Hollywood Park and the possible increase in traffic
congestion in the area. The local Member for Walney North drew attention to an
outstanding virtual meeting by members of Barrow Highways Sub-Group to
Hollywood Park following receipt of an assessment which had been undertaken.
The Local Highways Area Network Manager explained that the visit had been
postponed due to the decrease in traffic during the pandemic; it was agreed this
would be organised as soon as possible with an invitation being extended to
David Proctor, Cumbria Police Authority and Roger Exley, Cumbria Fire and Rescue
Service.
4

UPDATE FROM CUMBRIA FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE

Roger Exley, Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service attended the meeting for this item of
business. He explained that following issues raised at the last meeting of the
Sub-Group regarding traffic congestion on the highway at the Household Waste
Recycling in Barrow this had significantly improved.
Members were made aware of issues caused for emergency vehicles due to double
parking on the highway, particularly in rural areas, and were informed that
information was being circulated by Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service to highlight
the need to park responsibly.
The local Member for Hindpool raised concerns regarding the number
parked due to lack of restrictions and the significant amount of litter in
area at the rear of Cross Keys Public House/Debenhams store. The
was informed there had been a number of fires in the area recently and
vehicles had found access to the site difficult due to the parked vehicles.

of vehicles
the service
Sub-Group
emergency

It was agreed that the Area Manager would arrange a site visit which would include
a representative from the Authority’s Traffic Team, Parking Enforcement Team,
Roger Exley, Streetcare and elected members
5

2021/22 FLOOD AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE

Members received a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which presented an overview of flood and development management
activities in the Barrow area.
The local Member for Hawcoat raised a concern regarding flooding in the Abbey
Heights area. The Development Management Officer informed members that
recent conversations had taken place with the Site Manager who had pledged to
build a temporary measure to control the situation but explained that the land in
question was privately owned and discussions were in progress with landowner.

30

The local Member drew attention to the recent flooding of properties on South Row
due to problems on Stoney Dyke Lane. The Local Highways Area Network
Manager confirmed that the Authority had initially made the area safe and United
Utilities had now repaired the problem.
The local Member for Walney South raised his concerns regarding the continued
flooding on Thorny Nook Lane and the lack of inclusion of this matter in the report.
It was agreed that this matter would be included in the next report to the Sub-Group.
The local Member for Walney North raised his concerns about the lack of
communication from officers at Barrow Borough Council regarding flooding at Cows
Tarn Lane. It was agreed that the Chair of the Highways Sub-Group and the
Development Manager Officer would speak to officers at Barrow Borough Council
regarding this matter.
RECOMMENDED,

6

that the following be noted:(1)

the details provided in appendices 1, 2 and 3 of the
report;

(2)

Thorny Nook Lane be included in a future report to the
Sub-Group;

(3)

any significant comments, changes and/or amendments
will be highlighted here in subsequent and future reports
to the Sub-Group.

BARROW WORKS PROGRAMME 2021/22

The Local Area Highways Network Manager presented the Barrow Works
Programme 2021/22. It was agreed that members would be updated as necessary
following any budget amendments made by a meeting of the County Council in June
2021.
The local Member for Hawcoat asked when the road markings and cats eyes would
be reinstated on the coast road. The Local Area Highways Network Manager
explained that all previous road markings would be reinstated and anticipated the
lines would be re-painted in the following two weeks.
A discussion took place regarding the purchase of equipment by the Authority to
repair potholes and members were informed this had been purchased but arrival of
the machinery was still awaited. It was agreed the Local Area Highways Network
Manager would keep members updated.
RECOMMENDED, that the Programme be noted.

31

7

LEVELLING UP FUND BID

Members received a presentation from the Programme Manager, Capital
Programme regarding the Levelling Up Fund (LUF).
The Sub-Group was informed that following the unsuccessful Future High Street
Fund application in 2020 the application to the LUF had built on the projects
identified in that Bid. It was explained this supported Barrow town centre as a
strategic regeneration priority and focussed around a package of projects which
included improving the Market Hall and The Forum Theatre as well as enhancing
access to those cultural assets/attractions and connecting them to the rest of the
town through better transport infrastructure and improvements to the public realm.
Members were informed that the management arrangements for the public realm
and accessibility improvements scheme cost was circa £3m. It was explained it was
proposed that Cumbria County Council would deliver the public realm and
accessibility improvements on behalf of the Borough Council and would be
responsible for any cost over-runs. The Sub-Group noted that the County Council
would receive a 7.5% Project Management fee of direct construction costs to cover
staff costs and would enter into a collaboration agreement with Barrow Borough
Council.
The Sub-Group was informed of the next steps and noted that preparations were
underway to submit the application. The Leader of the Council and Chair of the
Local Committee would sign a letter supporting the Barrow LUF application.
The local Member for Hawcoat asked whether the stairs to the car park would
remain and officers confirmed that, currently, it was anticipated they would stay to
allow access to the rooftop car park. It was explained that an allowance had been
included in the Bill for the inclusion of a lift but until a detailed design had been
undertaken to consider what could be afforded this could not be guaranteed.
The Sub-Group drew attention to the waste land at Dalton Road and highlighted its
offensive view. It was explained that Barrow Borough Council owned this piece of
land which was not included in the Bid at present but acknowledged the importance
of developing this in the long-term.
8

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

There were no other items of business on this occasion.

32

9

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Sub-Group would be held on Tuesday 12
October 2021 at 10.15 am. Members agreed that venues for future meetings would
be discussed regularly but for now they would be scheduled to be held remotely.

The meeting ended at 11.30 am

33

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2

BARROW HIGHWAYS ADVISORY SUB-GROUP
Meeting date:
From:

9 April 2021

Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure

SAFER SCHOOLS – SCHOOL STREETS INITIATIVE
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report introduces the School Streets initiative which is aimed at
reducing traffic levels outside of schools during the arrival and
departure times.

1.2

The Barrow Highways Advisory Sub-Group (“the HASG”) is being
asked to make a recommendation to the Barrow Local Committee that
informal consultation may begin on the proposals with a specific
school plus a reserve school.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

Safer Schools helps to support the following Council Plan priorities:
 To safeguard children, and ensure that Cumbria is a great place
to
be a child and grow up.
 To enable communities to live safely and shape services locally.
 To provide safe and well -maintained roads and an effective
transport network.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the HASG is asked to recommend that Barrow Local Committee
agree to proceed to informal consultation on the proposal to introduce
a “School Street” in the Barrow area outside a specific school plus a
reserve school, the effect of which will be to reduce traffic levels
outside of the school during school arrival and departure times.

35

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The Barrow Local Committee meeting held on 10th March 2021, became
aware of the School Streets initiative and requested that an explanatory
paper be prepared for the next meeting of the HASG. Askam school has
been informally approached by officers although no commitment has been
made.

4.2

The School Streets initiative is an idea pioneered by the Sustrans Charity
that aims to tackle the congestion, poor air quality and road safety concerns
that many schools experience during drop-off and pick-up times . This is
achieved by way of traffic regulation at these times on the roads in the
vicinity of the school gates. The restriction will prohibit vehicular traffic
outside of the school with exemptions for emergency vehicles and residents.
The objectives of the school are to improve road safety and air quality
outside of the school, which may then increase walking and cycling to the
school.

4.3

The extent of a School Street is typically defined by signage and supported
by cones, which need to be placed and removed each day. The schools will
be asked to organise people to carry out the placing of the temporary
signage and cones.

4.4

There have been several trials of School Streets that have taken place
nationwide, some of which have progressed to become permanent.

4.5

Not everywhere is suitable for School Streets and we have been in contact
with both Leeds City Council and the London Borough of Hackney to learn
from their experiences. These Councils have concluded that those Schools
with the minimum of roads serving the School, together with local support
and enthusiasm for the schemes are the key to their success.

4.6

We would now like permission to carry out an informal consultation of a
proposal to introduce a “School Street” in the Barrow area, with a view to
taking a report with the findings to the Local Committee meeting of 12th July
2021. Dependent upon the results of the informal consultation, the report
may seek a resolution for an Experimental Traffic Regulation Order, during
which time the scheme will be monitored and people will be invited to submit
comments.

4.7

The informal consultation will consist of letters to parents, local residents and
the statutory consultees and will be managed by the road safety coordinator,
working with the traffic team leader.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Members can either support or not support the recommendation.

36

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

If recommendation 3.1 is agreed the funding for the proposed trial and
experimental traffic order would be met from within the successful bid in
respect of the Department for Transport Travel Demand Management
initiative. This funding is not devolved to Local Committee. It is expected
that costs per school for the informal consultation and experimental TRO
signage and infrastructure would be approximately £3,000.

6.2

Members are requested to note that if subsequently it was agreed to make
the experimental traffic order permanent any future maintenance costs
would need to be met from within the relevant years revenue budget
allocation devolved to Local Committee.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are no legal implications arising from the Recommendation at this
stage.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report seeks to raise awareness of the School Streets initiative and
seeks permission to progress to informal consultation of a “School Street” in
the Barrow area.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
April 2021

APPENDICES
Electoral Division:

All

Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

37

N/A

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
[including Local Committees]
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None.

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Chris Broadbent
07826 874354
chris.broadbent@cumbria.gov.uk

38

BARROW HIGHWAYS SUB-GROUP
Meeting date:

9 April 2021

Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure

From:

2021/22 FLOOD AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE
REPORT
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report presents an overview of Flood and Development
Management activities in the Barrow area.

1.2

Details are in the attached appendices.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

There are no direct strategic planning or equality implications in the
report as the report is for information only.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the details
provided.in appendix 1, 2 and 3.

3.2

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the
following:
There are no additional comments in the Appendices to bring to
the attention of Local Members. Any significant comments,
changes and/or amendments will be highlighted here in
subsequent and future reports to the HTWG.

4.0

BACKGROUND
Flood and Development Management Team

4.1

The Flood and Development Management Team responds on behalf of the
County Council as a consultee to the Local / County Planning Authorities
planning applications as the:o
o
o

Local Highway Authority
Lead Local Flood Authority
Education Authority.

39

The Team deals with Small, Minor and Major/Strategic planning applications
4.2

Details are provided in the following appendices for:-

4.2.1
4.2.2
4.2.3
4.2.4

Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Members can recommend that Local Committee note the report.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct resource or value for money implications.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The recommendations in this report do not contain any legal implications
however Local Committee could take decisions that could have future legal
implications.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report is to note.

-

Major & Strategic Planning applications in the Barrow Area.
Section 106 contributions update.
Flooding investigations in the Barrow Area.
Flood & Development Management Planning Application
Procedure.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
29 March 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4

-

Planning applications in the Copeland Area
Section 106 contributions update
Flooding investigations in the Copeland Area
Flood & Development Management Planning
Procedure

Application

Electoral Divisions: All
Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

40

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant Overview
and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A
No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Doug Coyle – Flood & Development Manager
Tel.
07966111875
E-mail
Doug.coyle@cumbria.gov.uk

NOTES for Appendix
▼ = this column indicates the Member engagement for the project
1 – County Council
2 – Cabinet
3 – Local Committee
4 – Local Highways and Transport Working Group
5 – Local Member(s)

41

APPENDIX 1
Flood & Development Management update on Planning Applications in Barrow Area
Current Major or Strategic applications being dealt with across the Barrow area since Last meeting
Application

Location

Proposal

Category Engineer

42

Reserved
Matters

Waterside Barn, Preston
Patrick, MILNTHORPE

Change of use of agricultural land to
domestic curtilage, erection of a
summerhouse & improvements to vehicular
access (Retrospective)

SMALL

S Giles

Respective

Barn Hey, Flookburgh Road,
Allithwaite, Grange-OverSands, LA11 7RJ

Approval of reserved matters for four
detached dwellings with associated parking
and vehicle access approved under outline
planning permission SL/2017/0979

SMALL

S Giles

Reserved
Matters

Hamilton House, Church
Walk, ULVERSTON

Creation of off-road parking area
(Retrospective)

SMALL

S Giles

PreApplication

Agricultural land between
Grizebeck and Chapels, east
of the existing A595 route

A595 Grizebeck Transport Improvement New Bypass of Dove Fold Farmyard and
Dove Bank

MAJOR

S Giles

Full
Application

Tudor Close, Ulverston

Erection of 6 dwellings

MINOR

S Giles

Appendix 2 –

Flood & Development Management update on S106 changes in Barrow Area

Below are details of the sec 106 funding recorded from Applications by the F&DM since last meeting
Mar-21
Agreed
Education Contribution
Highway Contribution
School Transport
Travel Plan Admin
Other
Grand Total

Received

£

128,950.00

£

8,250.00

£

19,800.00

£

148,750.00

£
£
£

13,652.76
9,732.00
31,634.76

43
Planning
Authority
Barrow

Local
Member
Dalton
South

Application
Ref
06/18/0089

Barrow

Dalton
North
Dalton
North

06/18/0375

Dalton
South

06/18/0070

Barrow

Barrow

06/18/0375

Application Name

Trigger

Crompton Drive, Dalton in
Furness
Junction
Improvements at junction of
Newton Road and Long Lane
London Road, Lindal in
Furness - TRO Contribution
London Road, Lindal in
Furness
Greystone
Lane/Station
Road
Cycle
Route
Greystone Lane - Junction
Improvement Contribution

Priorto
Occupation of 3rd
dwelling

Total
Total
Agreed
Received
£ 8,250 £
8,250

Not to occupy
land until paid
Not to occupy
land until paid

£

6,500

£

-

£

5,560

£

-

Prior
to
Occupation of the
10th dwelling

£ 108,640

£

-

£ 128,950

£

8,250

APPENDIX 3
Flood & Development Management update on Flooding concerns in Barrow Area
The following table provides details of flood events in 2021

No Flood Incidents to report

44

APPENDIX 4
Planning Application Procedure

The Flood and Development Management Team are implementing the following
procedure for assessing planning applications. The procedure ensures that
Members will be provided with an Advisory Notification when the planning
application is received. Members will also be advised of the response to be made
to major and strategic applications 24 hours before the response is issued to the
Local Planning Authority.

45

46

47

48

49

This page is intentionally left blank

BARROW HIGHWAYS ADVISORY SUB-GROUP
Meeting date:
From:

9 April 2021

Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure

BARROW LOCAL COMMITTEE PROVISIONAL DEVOLVED
HIGHWAYS CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

Members of the Barrow Highways Advisory Sub-Group (HASG) are
asked to recommend that Barrow Local Committee approve the revised
devolved highways capital programme 2021/22 including prioritised lists
of schemes, which will form the basis of the Local Committee’s
devolved highways capital programme for 2021/22 and provide a core
programme for future years subject to annual review. The updated
allocation for 2021/22 is £991,000 for the Non Principal Road Network
(NPRN) and pothole funding £728,000.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

This report supports the aims and objectives aims of the Council Plan,
Corporate Strategy and the Local Transport Plan through the efficient
planning and delivery of the Highways and Transport Programme in the
Barrow area.

2.2

The Programme complies with the Strategic Equality Assessments for
the Highways and Transport Service. Individual schemes will be
assessed against equality criteria as appropriate.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That HASG recommend that Barrow Local Committee approve the
revised devolved highways non principal road network capital
programme for 2021/22 set out in Appendices 1 and 2 to this report.

3.2

That HASG recommend that Barrow Local Committee to consider
inclusion of the schemes outlined in paragraph 4.4 within the pothole
capital funding for 2021/22.

51

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

This report makes recommendations for the Local Committee’s devolved
highways NPRN capital programme 2021/22, including prioritised lists of
schemes, which will form the basis of the Local Committee’s devolved
highways capital programme for 2021/22 and provide a core programme for
future years, subject to annual review. The allocation for 2021/22 is £991,000
(appendix 1).

4.2

This report follows on from previous reports in November 2020 and March
2021. Initially it was anticipated that Barrow Local Committee would receive a
devolved NPRN Capital allocation of £1,357,000 and the report in March 2021
was based on that figure however following the meeting of full council 18th
February 2021 capital budgets were agreed and set lower than anticipated
leaving Barrow Local Committee with a revised budget as detailed above. The
reduction to Barrow Local Committees devolved capital budget is £366,000.

4.3

This amount takes no account of any accelerated spending or underspending
that occurs by financial year end. This will be reported early in the new
financial year. It should be noted by members this figure is arrived at based
on a percentage of network length. Barrow has 7% of the county network and
thus gets 7% of the devolved NPRN capital funding allocation.

4.4

In order to accommodate this revised figure and achieve all works detailed on
the original provisional programme it has been necessary to move a number
of identified schemes into alternative pots of funding. To this end the following
schemes will be delivered and funded through the DFT pothole additional
funding stream.






4.5

Surface Dressing Totalling £91,000
Carriageway Resurfacing Totalling £85,000
Footway Reconstruction Totalling £140,000
Carriageway Patching Totalling £50,000
Total
£366,000

The proposed scheme list for the recommended devolved NPRN capital
budget for 2021/22 is shown in Appendix 2. The lists fall into the following
categories and can largely be described as the following:
Non-Principal Road (NPRN) Structural Maintenance Programme.

4.6

This programme is intended to maintain and improve the condition of the NonPrincipal Road Network (NPRN), including:
(a)

Carriageway, drainage and surface treatment schemes;

(b)

Footway and cycleway schemes,

(c)

Minor structural maintenance works to support the work of the Better
Highways Teams comprising programmed works for permanent repairs
that enhance the life of the highway asset.

(d)

Road lighting column replacement works.

52

4.7

As in previous programmes of NPRN work, it is intended to continue with
carriageway patching and surfacing treatment work. Investing in a proportion
of the network utilising the available funding and seal previously patched
carriageways against deterioration due to weathering and the ingress of
surface water. This is delivered through a surface dressing programme. It is
intended that this work is now delivered through the DFT pothole funding
allocation. Defective areas of carriageway on these sites has been prepared
during 2020/21 from the Pre Surface Dressing patching budget. This
preparatory work includes hand patching, machine inlay and overlays and
essential drainage work.

4.8

The proposed list of carriageway and footway structural maintenance
schemes set out in Appendix 2 has been developed from local knowledge,
condition surveys and Member and customer reports and has been prioritised
in accordance with the Priority Assessed Schemes scoring system. This year
more focus has been placed on footway maintenance. The reasoning for this
is, the largely urban Borough area has an extensive footway network. Much of
this is flagged in nature. Damaged sections of this can lead to an increase in
claims against the authority and deterioration of surrounding areas. A more
extensive replace or repair programme will reduce both of these occurrences
with a resultant reduction in exposure of the Authority to potential claims.

4.9

The road lighting column replacement budget will be targeted at columns,
particularly concrete columns and underground cable networks in poor
condition requiring replacement. Additionally, we intend to look at the
replacement of a number of heritage lantern fittings within the Borough and
begin a process of upgrading and replacement as required. Again we will
target some funding to the replacement of illuminated signs and posts in poor
condition.
Annual Package of Measures Programme (APM)

4.10

This programme is for small highway improvement schemes (estimated cost
less than £50,000), that will assist delivery of the County Council’s wider
transport objectives set out in the Cumbria Local Transport Plan.

4.11

Such schemes can be broadly classified as follows, though many schemes
will target more than one of the various classifications, i.e.:

4.12

(a)

Public transport infrastructure schemes e.g. bus stop improvements; bus
shelter grants to Parish and District Councils or bus priority measures.

(b)

Local safety schemes i.e. schemes that will contribute to the County
Councils objectives of improving road safety and reducing injuries
caused by road traffic collisions.

(c)

Walking and cycling schemes i.e. safer road crossings; new footways or
cycle facilities, footway widening schemes, dropped kerbs to improve
accessibility, removal of barriers to walking and cycling etc.

(d)

Traffic management and traffic calming schemes, including traffic
regulation orders, road widening, provision of passing spaces, etc.

Schemes have been prioritised in accordance with the methodology
presented to Barrow Local Committee by the Transport Infrastructure
Manager at its meeting in May 2012.

53

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Members may agree the recommendation or:

5.2

Members may suggest changes to the proposed programmes.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The non principal road highways capital works are devolved to Local
Committee to determine and deliver within the overall capital allocation that
Council agrees and in accordance with the Council’s policies and the overall
objectives as laid out in the current Local Transport Plan recommendation
3.1).

6.2

The pothole funding capital allocation received from the DfT is devolved to
Local Committee to determine and deliver within the overall capital allocation
that Council agrees and in accordance with the Council’s policies and the
overall objectives as laid out in the current Local Transport Plan and subject
to the DfT terms of the pothole additional stream (recommendation 3.2).

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The County Council has statutory duties to maintain the highway and in
certain circumstances could be held liable for injury damage or loss caused to
users of the highway as a result of failure to take responsible precautions to
secure their safe use of the highway. There are no other direct legal
implications.

7.2

The allocation of resources available for highway improvement schemes on
the basis of demonstrable priorities would support the Council’s defence
against any third party claims that might be made on the basis of loss suffered
allegedly as a result of a failure to improve the highway.

7.3

When allocating and moving money between budgets, Local Committee must
follow the rules set by the Council following its consideration of the “Draft
Revenue Budget 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Plan (2021-2026) and
Draft Capital Programme (2021-2026)” report (“the Report”) on 18 February
2021 and any such additional restrictions set by Cabinet and or Council
regulating the use of such funds”.

54

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report highlights the need to alter the original proposed programme of
devolved highways Capital works for Barrow following budget setting by Full
Council in February of this year. It is anticipated that the original works
programme can still be completed this year however other funding sources
are required to be used to enable this to happen. It is hoped that these
changes meet the wishes of the local committee in delivering a full
programme on a reduced budget in 2021/22.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
March 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1
Appendix 2

Electoral Divisions:

2021/22 Devolved Highways Capital Programme Summary
Proposed Capital Programme of works 2021/22

All Barrow

Executive Decision

Yes

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

N/A

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

55

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
[including Local Committees]
No previous relevant decisions

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.

REPORT AUTHOR
Keiron Tetchner 01229 407284

keiron.tetchner@cumbria.gov.uk

56

APPENDIX 1

Draft Proposed Devolved Highways Capital Programme Summary 2021/2022
Initial Allocation
Revised Allocation
2021/2022
2021/22 (£)
(£)
Non Principal Road Structural Maintenance Block
Carriageway and Surface Treatment Schemes.
Surface Treatment (Appendix 2)
Carriageway Schemes (Appendix 2)
Pre-Surface Dresing Patching
Minor Carriageway Patching
Road Markings

91,000
85,000
30,000
280,000

0
0
30,000
230,000

486,000

260000

Sub total Drainage

0
90,000
90,000

0
90,000
90,000

350000

210,000

Sub total footways

200000
550000

200,000
410,000

Road lighting column replacement
Road lighting column replacement
Sub total road lighting column replacement

95,000
95,000

95,000
95,000

124,000
4,000
8,000

124,000
4,000
8,000

136,000

136,000

Sub total carriageways

Drainage
Drainage Schemes (Appendix 2)
Minor Drainage Works

Footways
Footway Schemes (Appendix 2)
Minor Footway Patching

Minor Improvement Schemes (Formerly APM)
Minor Improvement Schemes (Appendix 2)
Speed Monitoring
Walking Route Improvements
Sub total Minor Improvement Schemes
Carry forward from previous year

Total Barrow Devolved Highways Capital
Programme

57

1,357,000

991,000

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2

2021/22 Scheme List NPRN
Road
Various
Various

Various
Various
C6010
U6124

AssetGr
SchemeType
Pre Surface Dressing Patching Surface treatment
Carriageway
Minor Carriageway Patching
Drainage
Various
Minor Drainage Works
Footway
Various
Minor Footway Patching
Footway
Abbey Road (Hibbert Road - Ainslie Street)
Footway Reconstruction
Footway
Dalton Lane (Hawcoat Lane - Glenridding Drive)Footway Reconstruction

Various

Annual Review of Traffic Regulation Matters

APM

APM

Barrow in furness

24,000

Various

VU/MD

In House

Various

Disabled Parking

APM

APM

Barrow in furness

8,000

Various

VU/MD

In House

Various

Speed Surveys

APM

APM

Barrow in furness

4,000

Various

VU/MD

External

Various

Walking Route Improvements

APM

APM

Barrow in furness

8,000

Various

DH

In House

APM

APM

Barrow in furness

30,000

Various

VU/MD

In House

APM

APM

Barrow in furness

25,000

Various

MH

Mixed

APM

APM

Barrow in furness

37,000

Various

MD/EL

In House

Lighting

Lighting Renewal

Barrow in furness

95,000

Various

PL

Mixed

Division
Various
Hindpool
Roosecote
Risedale
Various
Various
Various
Various
Risedale
Various

Comments

Resource
Inhouse
Kiely Bros
Kiely Bros
Kiely Bros
Inhouse
Inhouse
Inhouse
Inhouse
Inhouse
Inhouse/Framework

Various
Various

Name

Various
Various

Traffic Scheme Design
Route Management strategy

59

Various

Traffic Signs and Road Markings

Various

Road Lighting Replacement

District
Draft Budget
Barrow in furness
30,000
Barrow in furness
230,000
Barrow in furness
90,000
Barrow in furness
200,000
Barrow in furness
75,000
Barrow in furness
135,000

Division
Various
Various
Various
Various
Hindpool
Hawcoat

Comments
DH/EL
50k Patching moved into Pothole fund line
MH
DH
MH
MH

Resource
In House
In House
In House
In House
In House
In House

991,000

2021/22 Scheme List PRN
Road
A590
A5087
A5087
Various
Various
Various
Various
A5087
Various

Name

AssetGr
SchemeType
District
Draft Budget
PRN Barrow PSDP
Pre Surface Dressing Patching Carriageway
Barrow
20,000
Walney Road, Asda to Hollywood Park
Surface Dressing
Surface Treatment Barrow
73,994
Rampside Roundabout to Boundary
Surface Dressing
Surface Treatment Barrow
93,353
Salthouse Road between St Lukes Rd and RawlinsonSurface
St
Dressing
Surface Treatment Barrow
41,536
PRN Safety Inspections - Barrow Footway
Footway Works
Footways and Cycleways
Barrow
6,390
PRN Safety Inspections - Barrow Carriageway
Carriageway Works
Carriageway
Barrow
2,970
PRN Safety Inspections - Barrow Drainage
Drainage Works
Drainage
Barrow
1,260
Flags to Flexi Footway Schemes
Flags
Footways and Cycleways
Barrow
30,000
Salthouse Road footway
Reconstruction
Footways and Cycleways
Barrow
40,000
Route Management Barrow
Siding, Sign Clearance; Vegitation;
Carriageway
Visibility; Bulk replacement
Barrow of road markings 5,400

314,903

2022/23 Scheme List

Road
Various
Various
C6021
Various

Name

AssetGr

SchemeType

District

Draft Budget

Various

Pre Surface Dressing Patching

Barrow in furness 30,000

Various

Minor Carriageway Patching

Barrow in furness 250,000

Resurfacing

Barrow in furness 90,000

Minor Drainage Works

Barrow in furness 90,000

Park Road (Millstone Avenue to Ormsgill Lane)
Various

Various Various

Minor Footway Patching

U6196 Risedale Road

Footway Reconstruction

Barrow in furness 200,000
Barrow in furness 300,000

Surface Dressing
Surface Dressing
APM

APM

Barrow in furness 65,000
Barrow in furness 25,000
Barrow in furness 24,000

Various Disabled Parking

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 6,000

Various Speed Surveys

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 2,000

Various Walking Route Improvements

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 8,000

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 30,000

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 25,000

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 37,000

C6009
Ulverston Road, Dalton
U6102 Urswick Road, Dalton
Various Annual Review of Traffic Regulation Matters

60

Various
Various

Traffic Scheme Design
Route Management strategy

Various Traffic Signs and Road Markings
Various

Road Lighting Replacement

Barrow in furness 95,000
1,277,000

Division

Comments

2023/24 + Scheme List

61

Road
Various
Various
U6156
Various
Various
C6012
U6140
U6168
U6170
U6078
Various
Various
Various
U6125
U6116
Various
U6233
U6126
U6153
C6004
U6158
C6004
U6071
Various
Various

Name
Various
Various
Park Drive
Various
Various
Michealson Road
Darley Dale Road
Yarlside Road
Holker Street
Skelwith Drive, Dalton
Various
Various
Various
Hawcoat Lane
Holbeck Road
Various
Black Butts Lane
Hill Road
Croslands Park
Rating Lane, Meadowlands to Roundabout
Longlands Avenue
Rating Lane, Meadowlands to St Bernards
Coniston Avenue
Various
Various

AssetGr
Pre Surface Dressing Patching
Minor Carriageway Patching
Carriageway Reconstruction
Pre Surface Dressing Patching
Minor Carriageway Patching
Carriageway Reconstruction
Carriageway Reconstruction
Carriageway Reconstruction
Carriageway Reconstruction
Carriageway Reconstruction
Minor Drainage Works
Minor Drainage Works
Minor Footway Patching
Footway Reconstruction
Footway Reconstruction
Minor Footway Patching
Footway Reconstruction
Footway Reconstruction
Footway Reconstruction
Footway Reconstruction
Footway Reconstruction
Footway Reconstruction
Footway Reconstruction
Surface Dressing
Surface Dressing

SchemeType

District

Draft Budget
30,000
250,000
220,000
30,000
250,000
356,000
30,000
32,240
150,000
83,000
90,000
90,000
200,000
20,000
60,000
200,000
175,000
150,000
155,000
150,000
107,000
50,000
47,000
90,000
90,000

Division

Comments

Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25

Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25
Year 24/25

Various Annual Review of Traffic Regulation Matters

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 24,000

Various Disabled Parking

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 6,000

Various Speed Surveys

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 2,000

Various Walking Route Improvements

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 8,000

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 30,000

Route Management strategy
Various
Various Traffic Signs and Road Markings
Various Annual Review of Traffic Regulation Matters

APM
APM
APM

APM
APM
APM

Barrow in furness 25,000
Barrow in furness 37,000
Barrow in furness 24,000

Year 24/25

Various Disabled Parking

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 6,000

Year 24/25

Various Speed Surveys

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 2,000

Year 24/25

Various

Traffic Scheme Design

Various Walking Route Improvements
Various
Various

Traffic Scheme Design
Route Management strategy

Various Traffic Signs and Road Markings
Various Various Roads
Various Various Roads

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 8,000

Year 24/25

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 30,000

Year 24/25

APM

APM

Barrow in furness 25,000

Year 24/25

APM
Road Lighting Replacement
Road Lighting Replacement

APM

Barrow in furness 37,000
95,000
95,000

Year 24/25

3,559,240

Year 24/25

62

63

use/Framework

This page is intentionally left blank

BARROW HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT WORKING GROUP
Meeting date:

11 June 2021

Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure

From:

2021/22 FLOOD AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE
REPORT
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report presents an overview of Flood and Development
Management activities in the Barrow area.

1.2

Details are in the attached appendices.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

There are no direct strategic planning or equality implications in the
report as the report is for information only.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the details
provided in appendix 1, 2 and 3.

3.2

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the
following:
There are no additional comments in the Appendices to bring to
the attention of Local Members. Any significant comments,
changes and/or amendments will be highlighted here in
subsequent and future reports to the HTWG.

4.0

BACKGROUND
Flood and Development Management Team

4.1

The Flood and Development Management Team responds on behalf of the
County Council as a consultee to the Local / County Planning Authorities
planning applications as the:o
o
o

Local Highway Authority
Lead Local Flood Authority
Education Authority.

65

The Team deals with Small, Minor and Major/Strategic planning applications
4.2

Details are provided in the following appendices for:-

4.2.1 Appendix 1 – Major and Strategic Planning applications in the Barrow Area.
4.2.2 Appendix 2 - Section 106 contributions update.
4.2.3 Appendix 3 – Flooding investigations in the Barrow Area.
5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Members can recommend that Local Committee note the report.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct resource or value for money implications.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The recommendations in this report do not contain any legal implications
however Local Committee could take decisions that could have future legal
implications.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report is to note.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
3 June 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Planning applications in the Barrow Area
Appendix 2 – Section 106 contributions update
Appendix 3 – Flooding investigations in the Barrow Area
Electoral Divisions: All
Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?
If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant Overview
and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

66

N/A
No
N/A
No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Doug Coyle – Flood & Development Manager
Tel.
07966111875
E-mail
Doug.coyle@cumbria.gov.uk

NOTES for Appendix
▼ = this column indicates the Member engagement for the project
1 – County Council
2 – Cabinet
3 – Local Committee
4 – Local Highways and Transport Working Group
5 – Local Member(s)

67

68

APPENDIX 1
Current Major and Strategic applications and significant Pre-apps being dealt with across Barrow area since
last meeting

Application

Location

Sowerby Woods Business
PRAP/2020/0030 Park, off Bouthwood Rd,
Barrow, LA14 4QR

Proposal

Category

Engineer

Industrial development mixed B1/B2/B8

Pre-app

S Giles

Pre-app

S Giles

Major

S Giles

Land North of cows Tarn
Commercial development for the provision of an outdoor
Lane, Barrow-In-Furness,
activity centre at the request of Cumbria County Council
Barrow-In-Furness, LA14 3US

B07/2021/0071

Proposed Housing
Development at Long
Lane/Newton Road Dalton-inFurness Cumbria

PPA/2021/1179

Land south of Ashley and
Rock, Park Road, Barrow Park
Road Industrial Estate, Park
Road, Barrow-In-Furness,
Barrow-In-Furness, LA14 4EQ

69

PPA/2021/1302

Erection of 28 detached dwellings of a mix of single
storey, two storey, two and a half storey, 4 flats, including
new site entrance and associated works (32 dwellings in
total)

Hybrid planning application for mixed use development
comprising commercial development in the west of the
site fronting the A590 and residential use of the remainder
Pre-app
of the land - in outline; and access, open space and
infrastructure works.

S Giles

APPENDIX 2

Section 106 funding recorded from Applications 2018 to date (no change from last report)
Planning
Authority
Barrow

Local
Application
Member
Ref
Dalton South 06/18/0089

Barrow

Dalton North 06/18/0375

Barrow

Dalton North 06/18/0375

Barrow

Dalton South 06/18/0070

Application Name

Trigger

Total Agreed Total
Received
Crompton Drive, Dalton in Prior to Occupation of 3rd £ 8,250
£
8,250
Furness
Junction dwelling
Improvements at junction of
Newton Road and Long Lane
London Road, Lindal in Furness Not to occupy land until £ 6,500
£
- TRO Contribution
paid
London Road, Lindal in Furness Not to occupy land until £ 5,560
£
- Greystone Lane/Station Road paid
Cycle Route
Greystone Lane - Junction Prior to Occupation of the
Improvement Contribution
10th dwelling

70
Agreed

Received

Education Contribution
Highway Contribution

£

128,950.00

£

8,250.00

£

19,800.00

£

13,652.76

£

9,732.00

£

31,634.76

School Transport
Travel Plan Admin
Other
Grand Total

£

148,750.00

£ 108,640

£

-

£ 128,950

£

8,250

APPENDIX 3

Update on Flooding in the Barrow area since the last meeting
No Property Flooding Incidents to report since our meeting in April 2021; however please find listed below the
previous flooding instances that the F&DM team are working on or concluded recently in the Barrow district as
recorded at our Making Space for Water meeting:
Description
Property flooding to rear of house from
surface water culvert, water getting under
house causing damp and internal damage

Latest investigation comments
The LLFA has carried out extensive investigations
upstream and downstream and source of the surface
water unknown. Culvert also blocked downstream.

South Row, Roose

Cellar flooding to 3 properties

After investigations, the conclusion is groundwater.
Houses were built on old beck. Cellars need tanking and /
or sump pumps if owners want to keep them dry for use.
Cellars are not habitable rooms

71

Location
74 Rating Lane

Abbey Approach and railway Ordinary watercourse in field, culvert and
underpass
headwall blocking regularly with silt and
debris from flood events leading to flooding
of the footpath and railway underpass

LLFA has liaised with tenant, owner’s solicitor, Network
Rail, PROW and lately the developer of Abbey Heights.
Better silt management to tackle run-off from building site
instructed. LLFA have also instructed the owner to keep
the culvert headwall clear

Longway, Barrow

Reports of highway and property flooding LLFA Visited the site with Highways and UU and
by several households following a survey distributed the official flood incident report questionnaire to
poll by the MP
gather more information for FIR.

Cows Tarn Lane, Walney

Flooding to the highway

Discussions to be held between the landowner (BBC) and
CCC Highways to tackle water flowing off field and look at
drainage routes and discharge locations

This page is intentionally left blank

73

GRP1
B&S
B&S
B&S
B&S
B&S
B&S
B&S
B&S
B&S
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
NPRN
ITB-ESS
ITB-ESS
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-Pothole
DFT-Pothole
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-POTHOLE
DFT-Pothole
DFT-POTHOLE
PRN
PRN
PRN
PRN
PRN
PRN
PRN
PRN
PRN
PRN
PRN
PRN
PRN

FinYear
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22

Road

A590

C6010
U6152
A5087

Various
Various
Various
Various
U6124
C6010
Various
Various
Various
Various
Various
Various

2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22
2021/22

U6095
U6094
U6131

U6241
U6134
U6179
U6162
U6161
U6126

A590
A5087
A5087
Various
Various
Various
Various

A5087

Name
SchemeType
WorkType
District ProjCode
Revised Budget Commitment Works Order Value Tech Time Inhouse Time Inhouse Plant Materials Other Costs Cost to Date Forecast Cost Variance
BRAG Table.BRAG
Planned Start Date
Planned End Date
% Complete
Scour Repairs
Maintenance
Scour Repairs
Barrow QBAHTBS01
£10,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£10,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Parapet Repairs
Maintenance
Parapet Repairs
Barrow QBAHTBS02
£10,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£10,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Jubilee Bridge Regular Maintenance
Maintenance
Maintenance
Barrow QBAHTBSAA
£35,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£35,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Barrow Sea Walls
Maintenance
Sea Wall Repairs
Barrow QBAHTBSAC
£5,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£5,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Retaining Walls
Maintenance
Retaining Wall Repairs
Barrow QBAHTBSAD
£10,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£10,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
C6010 Ruskinville Rly No 64
Maintenance
Bridge Works
Barrow QBAHTBSXE
£30,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£30,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
U6152 Manor Road
Maintenance
Bridge Works
Barrow QBAHTBSXF
£35,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£35,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
A5087 High Level Michelson Rd/Strand
Maintenance
Bridge Works
Barrow QBAHTBSXG
£10,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£10,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Total
£145,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00 £145,000.00
£0.00
Pre Surface Dressing Patching
Carriageway Patching
Carriageway Patching
Barrow QBANPRN01
£30,000.00
£20,335.74
£20,335.74
£0.00
£0.00
£5,185.06 £2,766.63
£0.00
£7,951.69
£0.00
£30,000.00
01/04/2021
31/03/2021
0.00%
Minor Drainage Works
Drainage
Drainage
Barrow QBANPRN04
£90,000.00
£69,816.25
£69,816.25
£503.80
£0.00
£671.70
£937.60
£1,087.69
£3,200.79
£0.00
£90,000.00
01/04/2021
31/03/2021
0.00%
Minor Footway Patching
Footway Patching
Footway Patching
Barrow QBANPRN05
£200,000.00 £129,381.48
£129,381.48 £1,337.62
£0.00
£1,105.42
£519.00 -£2,514.12
£447.92
£0.00 £200,000.00
01/04/2021
31/03/2021
0.00%
Street Lighting
Street Lighting
Various
Barrow QBANPRN06
£95,000.00
£41,000.00
£41,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£95,000.00
01/04/2021
31/03/2021
0.00%
Annual Review of Traffic Regulation Matters
Various
Various
Barrow QBANPRN07
£24,000.00
£5,868.76
£5,868.76
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£24,000.00
11/05/2021
31/03/2021
Minor Carriageway Patching
Carriageway Patching
Carriageway Patching
Barrow QBANPRN08
£230,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00 £230,000.00
01/04/2021
31/03/2021
0.00%
U6124 Dalton Lane - Hawcoat Lane to Glenridding Drive
Footway Works
Reconstruction
Barrow QBANPRNCE
£135,000.00 £203,595.34
£203,595.34
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00 £135,000.00
10/05/2021
30/07/2021
0.00%
Abbey Road (Hibbert Road - Ainslie Street)
Footway
Resurfacing
Barrow QBANPRNCF
£75,000.00
£80,638.71
£80,638.71
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£75,000.00
11/10/2021
10/11/2021
0.00%
Speed Surveys
APM
Speed Surveys
Barrow QBANPRNCG
£4,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£4,000.00
0.00%
Traffic Scheme Design
APM
Traffic Scheme Design
Barrow QBANPRNCI
£30,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£30,000.00
0.00%
Disabled Parking
APM
Disabled parking
Barrow QBANPRNCJ
£8,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£8,000.00
0.00%
Walking Route Improvements
APM
Walking Route Improvements Barrow QBANPRNCK
£8,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£8,000.00
0.00%
Traffic Signs and Road Markings
APM
Traffic Signs and Road Markings Barrow QBANPRNCL
£37,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£37,000.00
0.00%
Route Management strategy
APM
Route Management strategy
Barrow QBANPRNCM
£25,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£25,000.00
0.00%
Total
£991,000.00 £550,636.28
£550,636.28 £1,841.42
£0.00
£6,962.18 £4,223.23 -£1,426.43 £11,600.40
£0.00 £991,000.00
Hindpool Rd to Hawcoat Lane Barrow 2016/17 - Abbey Road/ Holker Street/Rawlinson Street Junction
Fully Remove road markings referring
Barrow
to ‘keep
QBARESSAE
left’ and ‘keep right’ at £0.00
pedestrian crossing
£0.00Widen crossing points
£0.00central refuges
£0.00 to accommodate
£0.00 pedestrians
£0.00and cyclists
£0.00
Rationalise£0.00
existing ADS to
£0.00
show direction£0.00
of travel for all
£0.00
users rather than s
0.00%
Total
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
Moor Road Marton
Surface Dressing
Surface Dressing
Barrow QBARPOT02
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
25/04/2021
25/04/2021
0.00%
Surface Dressing
Surface Treatment
Surface Dressing
Barrow QBARPOT02
£91,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£91,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Marsh Grange
Surface Dressing
Surface Dressing
Barrow QBARPOT02
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
25/04/2021
25/04/2021
0.00%
Quarry Brow Ormsgill Lane
Surface Dressing
Surface Dressing
Barrow QBARPOT02
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
23/05/2021
23/05/2021
0.00%
Minor Carriageway Patching
Carriageway Patching
Carriageway Patching
Barrow QBARPOT08
£50,000.00
£0.00
£0.00 £1,304.56
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£1,304.56
£50,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Barrow Pothole
Pothole Patching
Pothole Patching
Barrow QBARPOTAA
£216,000.00
£84,639.28
£84,639.28
£0.00
£0.00
£13,700.75 £17,026.81 -£15,700.00 £15,027.56 £216,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Various Back Streets
Reconstruction
Reconstruction
Barrow QBARPOTXC
£100,000.00
£0.00
£122,881.24
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00 £100,000.00
£0.00
01/11/2020
30/11/2020
100.00%
U6241 Plymouth Street
Footway Reconstruction
Replacing flags with bitmac
Barrow QBARPOTXF
£36,447.21
£33,538.71
£0.00
£0.00
£476.20
£738.90
£0.00
£1,215.10
£36,447.21 -£36,447.21
0.00%
Rear of Rodney and Nelson Street
Resurfacing
Resurfacing
Barrow QBARPOTXI
£25,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£25,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Rear of Athol and Abercorn Street
Resurfacing
Resurfacing
Barrow QBARPOTXJ
£30,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£30,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Rear of Holcroft Hill and Provincial Street
Resurfacing
Resurfacing
Barrow QBARPOTXK
£30,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£30,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Salthouse Road (Railway Bridge - Roose Road Junction)
Footway
Resurfacing
Barrow QBARPOTXL
£140,000.00
£0.00
£130,933.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00 £140,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Dalton Lane
Footway Reconstruction
Footway Reconstruction
Barrow QBARPOTXM
£90,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£90,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Hill Road
Footway Reconstruction
Reconstruction
Barrow QBARPOTXN
£56,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£56,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Total
£828,000.00 £121,086.49
£371,992.23 £1,304.56
£0.00
£14,176.95 £17,765.71 -£15,700.00 £17,547.22 £864,447.21 -£36,447.21
PRN Barrow PSDP
Pre Surface Dressing Patching
Pre Surface Dressing Patching Barrow QBARPRN01
£20,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£20,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Walney Road, Asda to Hollywood Park
Surface Dressing
Surface Dressing
Barrow QBARPRN02
£0.00
£0.00
£61.02
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£61.02
£73,994.00 -£73,994.00
23/05/2021
23/05/2021
100.00%
Rampside Roundabout to Boundary
Surface Dressing
Surface Dressing
Barrow QBARPRN02
£0.00
£0.00
£61.02
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£61.02
£93,353.00 -£93,353.00
23/05/2021
23/05/2021
100.00%
Salthouse Road between St Lukes Rd and Rawlinson St
Surface Dressing
Surface Dressing
Barrow QBARPRN02
£0.00
£0.00
£61.02
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£61.02
£41,537.00 -£41,537.00
23/05/2021
23/05/2021
0.00%
Barrow Surface Dressing
Surface Dressing
Surface Dressing
Barrow QBARPRN02
£208,884.00 £203,286.26
£0.00
£61.02
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00 £30,534.95 £30,595.97 £203,300.00
£5,584.00
23/05/2021
23/05/2021
0.00%
PRN Safety Inspections - Barrow Footway
Safety Inspection
Footway Works
Barrow QBARPRN40
£6,390.00
£0.00
£20,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£216.04
£231.06
£0.00
£447.10
£6,390.00
£0.00
01/04/2021
31/03/2022
0.00%
PRN Safety Inspections - Barrow Carriageway
Safety Inspection
Carriageway Works
Barrow QBARPRN41
£2,970.00
£0.00
£10,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£100.00
£27.00
£0.00
£127.00
£2,970.00
£0.00
01/04/2021
31/03/2022
0.00%
PRN Safety Inspections - Barrow Drainage
Safety Inspection
Drainage Works
Barrow QBARPRN42
£1,260.00
£0.00
£20,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£64.72
£0.00
£64.72
£1,260.00
£0.00
01/04/2021
31/03/2022
0.00%
Flags to Flexi Footway Schemes
Footway Works
Flags
Barrow QBARPRNAS
£54,724.82
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
01/10/2020
06/11/2020
100.00%
Flags to Flexi Footway Schemes
Footway Works
Flags
Barrow QBARPRNAT
£30,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£30,000.00
£0.00
0.00%
Salthouse Road Footway
Reconstruction
Reconstruction
Barrow QBARPRNAU
£40,000.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£40,000.00
£0.00
23/05/2021
23/05/2021
100.00%
Route Management Barrow
Road Markings, Signs Trees etc
Siding, Sign Clearance; Vegitation;Barrow
Visibility;
QBARPRNAV
Bulk replacement of road
£5,400.00
markings
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00
£5,400.00
£0.00
0.00%
Total
£314,904.00 £203,286.26
£104,724.82
£244.08
£0.00
£316.04
£322.78 £30,534.95 £31,417.85 £518,204.00 -£203,300.00

Member
Various
Various
Various
Various
Various

Area Comments

Des English
Helen Wall
Various
Various
Various
Various
Various
Various
Roy Worthington
Anne Burns
Various
Various
Various
Various
Various
Various
Helen Wall
Ben Shirley
Various
Helen Wall
Bill McEwan
Various
Various
Various
Frank Cassidy
Anne Burns
Helen Wall
Kevin Hamilton
Helen Wall
Roy Worthington
Roy Worthington
Various
Anne Burns
Derek Gawne
Helen Wall
Various
Various
Various
Various
Various
Various
Helen Wall
Various

Journal £14K to QBANPRNBX, £14K to QBANPRNBT and £13K QBARPOTXA

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR
BARROW
Meeting date:
From:

12 July 2021

Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and
Community Services

BARROW AREA PLANNING REPORT
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report brings together information from across the Community
teams including Community Development, Libraries and Archives, and
provides an update on work and agreed activity since the last meeting
of the Committee.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

The County Council’s vision set out in the Council Plan 2018-2022 is to
be “a Council that works with residents, businesses, communities and
other organisations to deliver the best services possible within the
available resources.” The approach and work of the Local Committee
directly contributes to this, and area based working, and shaping
services locally is one of the key ways of delivering this vision.

2.2

The work of Barrow Local Committee, through its Area Plan and
projects helps to achieve the Council Plan 2018-2022 outcomes, which
are:




2.3

People in Cumbria are healthy and safe
People in Cumbria are well connected and thriving
The economy in Cumbria is thriving and benefits everyone

The development, operation and monitoring of the Council Plan
requires a focus on the Council’s performance against the identified
outcomes, increasingly understood through localities. Barrow Area
Plan sets out three targeted priorities for the area, which are:


Improving health and well-being and tackling poverty



To support Cumbria’s Early Help strategy which enables support
for children, families and young people



Promoting sustainable economic growth and creating jobs.

75

2.4

The locally devolved funding is available for Local Committees to
allocate within the area to support positive outcomes, targeted and
mainstream, designed to improve outcomes for the communities of
Barrow. This funding can be targeted to initiate new activity or to
enhance/complement existing provision according to locally
determined need.

2.5

Local Committee is mindful of equality issues and duly considers that
its actions and decisions do not result in inequality of service
provision or exclusion from participation. The work of Local Committee
directly supports the Council’s wider equalities agenda.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That Members note the updates in this report

3.2

That Members agree the budget allocations as outlined in Appendix 3

3.3

That Local Committee agree the 6 schemes as outlined in paragraph
4.42 to be funded and delivered from the Contain Outbreak Mitigation
Fund Improving Outdoor Spaces (Area Based Events and Activities)
workstream

3.4

That Local Committee agrees funding £5,000 to the Borough Council to
support a Poverty Truth Commission from General Provisions as
outlined in Paragraph 4.41i

3.5

That Local Committee agrees a grant of £10,000 from its 0-19 services
budget to Active Cumbria to support pilot a project for Active Start as
outlined in paragraph 4.47ii

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

This report provides Members with an update of the work of Barrow Local
Committee and the Community Services Teams since its meeting of 10
March 2021 and outlines provisional and actual expenditure against Local
Committee’s budget as of 31 May 2021

4.2

Members continue to meet informally through virtual informal meetings to
share information, discuss issues and recommend courses of action. Since
the May a number of topics have been discussed including:








4.3

Dalton Borderlands Place Programme
The pilot approach in Childrens Services of the Intake Team
Improvements to Footpaths
Updates on the work of the Barrow Resilience Groups
Barrow Town Deal Community Hubs Project updates
Cumbria Transport Infrastructure Plan
COVID-19 and Population Mental Wellbeing

In addition to these specific meetings, Members also hold ad hoc meetings
and workshops as needed, and also continue to be kept informed through
regular communications from the Area Manager and Community
Development Team.

76

4.4

The formal Local Committee meeting of 28 May was cancelled. Two
decisions that would have been made at that meeting that were time
sensitive were:



4.5

Funding for the Money Advice Service
The Barrow Business Improvement District Election

Due to the time sensitive nature of these decisions, appropriate governance
was followed and the decisions were taken by the Leader of the Council
rather than Barrow Local Committee on this occasion.
Covid response

4.6

The Barrow Resilience Group has moved its meetings to three weekly and
continues to co-ordinate work and resources as needed.

4.7

In addition to monitoring the current position in relation to Covid in the
borough, key areas of focus over recent meetings have included:


Support to and impacts on children and young people, and the holiday
activity and food programme



Mental health and wellbeing



The work of the Community Covid Recovery Group



The Collaborative Bid into the Government’s Community Renewal Fund
which will help support recovery activity across the borough



Considering the Safer Streets fund Round 3

4.8

The Food and Support Partnership re-named Community COVID Recovery
Group now meets monthly. This includes the Community Resource
Distribution Points (CRDP) (3 x food hubs – Barrow Island, Spring Mount
and Dalton) and wider partners such as Integrated Care Community (ICC),
Age UK, Barrow Foodbank and Health and Wellbeing Coaches (HAWCs).
Across all 3 CRDPs there has been a reduction in demand of food over
recent weeks.

4.9

The objectives of the CRDPs now are to support people with food in an
emergency situation/short-term to enable people to get back on their feet.
Medium/longer-term support is also being provided through partners such as
Barrow Foodbank, Citizens Advice Bureau, Health & Wellbeing Coaches etc.
It is emerging that there is an increased need for support in communities
around more complex issues such as debt and mental health.

4.10

A key issue that has and is emerging is the need to support individuals and
families with emergency items during various situations (not just solely due
to Covid). Examples of these situations include families having to be moved
from an existing house due to unsuitability and the new property having no
white goods, or an individual and their child moved urgently due to domestic
abuse but with key items not available in the new location.

4.11

A framework and referral process has therefore been developed to ensure a
single distribution point to pilot supporting families and individuals across
Barrow borough. Included in the referral process will be identifying existing
agency support being provided alongside any additional support needed to
ensure the family or individual is getting the help needed. Key to this is
looking at the root cause of the issues and prevention going forward.

77

4.12

Running in parallel will be work to identify how going forward there can be a
more joined-up process to support individuals and families when needed. All
the data gathered will be used to evaluate the difference this pilot has made
and also identify who and how they were being supported and if there were
any gaps.

4.13

The relationships and trust that the CRDPs have built with their communities
needs to be built on and provides an opportunity to take forward more
positive community development in COVID recovery.
Area Working and Community Services Update

4.14

The team locally have also continued to work to support area planning
activity and priority areas of work, and key areas are highlighted below for
Members information.

4.15

Barrow Town Deal – Members continue to receive regular updates about
the progress of this work and in particular the Community Hubs and Earnse
Bay programme, which was developed from Area Planning work. The four
project groups continue to meet with a range of partners and elected
members sitting on each. The current position for each of the hubs is
outlined below:


Ormsgill Community Centre – The centre has now re opened in a limited
manner compliant with covid regulations. Family Action are undertaking
work with children and families from the centre, the library link has now
been relocated there and the Post Office now operates from the site on a
Friday afternoon.
The working group are looking at organising a leaflet drop promoting the
activities that are available from the centre and it is expected that it will
be fully open once Covid restrictions are further lifted. A building user
group made up of the services and groups using the centre is also being
pulled together and will meet monthly.



Barrow Island Community Hub – the working group continue to meet and
costings and designs are being developed for how the existing building at
Bram Longstaffe can be further improved to support the community use
and activities that are going to take place from the site. Some activities
such as Community Skills and Learning and Children’s Centre work are
already taking place, and in addition the site has been used for
supporting the vaccination role out in the community.
The next stage of consultation and engagement for Bram Longstaffe will
be undertaken in the next few weeks. Targeted engagement through a
survey is being undertaken via social media using specific groups on
Barrow Island to gauge their views on the type of activities and services
they would like to access. In addition to existing service users in Bram
Longstaffe will be asked to complete the survey to understand what
additional activities and services they would like to see.



Town Centre Hub – The Forum has been agreed as the site for the town
centre hub, and work is underway looking at the work and improvements
that could be made to enable this to be delivered. Consultation and
engagement will be commencing, focusing how the space could be used
in different ways through innovative activities, workshops etc. A video

78

had been produced in partnership with The Forum and CandoFM to
consult the public and ask them to feed their ideas through onto an ideas
board on the #BrilliantBarrow website.


Earnse Bay – Members have continued to receive regular updates on the
progress of this project, most recently with a joint Borough and County
Council Member session to look at the developing ideas for the site.
At the time of writing consultation has begun with people being urged to
share their views on what they would like to see included in the designs
of a new outdoor community space at Earnse Bay. The designers’ initial
ideas showing how the area might look when it is nestled into the Walney
coastline will be shared both online and at a number of drop in sessions.
The concepts which have been developed draw upon ideas put forward
by members of the public, stakeholder groups and children at five local
schools during a series of engagement events to create the visual
representation. The feedback from this consultation will help to shape
the final designs which will be costed and put forward as part of the final
business case for the project.

4.16

Egerton Court Multi-Agency Partnership - An Egerton Court Multi-Agency
Partnership has been set up to work together with landlords and agents
looking at supporting the tenants on Egerton Court. A number of new
agents have taken over several blocks of flats and were keen to provide
tenant support. During COVID due to partners unable to support tenants as
previously undertaken social and environmental issues had arisen.
However, this is now being addressed with opportunities for tenants to be
supported through the County Council Health and Wellbeing Coaches and
linking to the work in Bram Longstaffe with partners.

4.17

ParkPlay - Over 60 people took part in Barrow’s first-ever ParkPlay on
Saturday at Barrow Park. The event will now be held every Saturday in
Barrow Park from 10am-11am, all year round. It is delivered by ParkPlay
working in partnership with Active Cumbria, Barrow Borough Council,
Cumbria County Council and supported by local schools.

4.18

This is the first ParkPlay in the North and offers FREE fun and games for
people of any age and gives people the opportunity to meet, move and play
together with others in their local community. People can take part in a range
of games and activities including dodgeball, frisbee, scavenger hunts and
quick cricket.

4.19

Dalton Borderlands Place Programme – The Dalton Borderlands Town
Team has continued to meet on a monthly basis, as has the Dalton
Community Partnership.

4.20

The community consultation was very positive with 376 responses being
received, and based on this feedback and the feedback from Members, the
Town Team and Community Partnership a draft vision has been developed
and presented to the Dalton Town Team and the Barrow Local Committee
Vision: “an economic role that comes from being a quality place people
choose to live in, a caring community for people who work in Barrow,
Sellafield and elsewhere”

79

This is underpinned by three key themes:



4.21

active lifestyles
celebrating our character
a community to cherish

The longlist of projects is currently being refined, with Borderlands eligible
projects being identified. These projects would be further developed and
shortlisted for inclusion within the Dalton Town Investment Plan.
Barrow Libraries and Archives

4.22

Barrow Library building renovations - The refurb of the library is
progressing well and renovation work will commence on the front entrance
area on Monday 5th July and is scheduled to finish on 18th August.

4.23

Ormgsill Library Link - We have a new Library Link in the Community
Centre at Ormsgill. Fresh new stock has been added to the library and we
will be welcoming new and existing customers along to use the service.
People will be able to join the library by completing a simple form at the link
or online. We will be planning talks and activities for the community over the
coming months.

4.24

Library/Health & Wellbeing Coaches (HAWCs) - Library & Customer
Managers have been working with HAWCs to support library customers with
additional needs. Library staff have received training and support from the
HAWC Team Leader to help identify customers who may need extra support
or would benefit from the service offered by the HAWCs. HAWCs will have
a regular presence within the library and will encourage users to take
advantage of library events & activities.

4.25

Barrow Action for Trans Awareness - We are delighted that Barrow has
been assessed and passed our Barrow Action For Trans Awareness
meeting and we will be added to the list of local organisation who have
signed up and made the BAFTA pledge. We have produced training
documents for all staff to ensure we are committed to providing a fully
inclusive offer for our customers.

4.26

Digital - We have delivered several outreach projects recently. Following the
success of the Good Things Foundation Digital Lifeline project where digital
tablets were delivered to local people living with disabilities. We have been
given 10 licences to train staff in how to become Aspire trainers to better
help people with disabilities. The Barrow team worked particularly hard with
local partners to ensure those people in the community with the most need
received a tablet. For these efforts Barrow Library was awarded £1400
funding. In addition to this, we have also been given a tech budget we can
use to buy equipment to draw people into libraries.

4.27

Empathy Day - One of our Library Outreach Project Officers (LOPOs)
attended Empathy Day training with the Empathy Lab via Zoom. We
promoted empathy day events across social media and in our newsletter.
This year’s theme was Take a Walk in Someone Else’s Shoes. We created
the Cumbria libraries empathy walk film to be shared across the county.

4.28

Half Term activities for children - Strange World Travel Agency- We
created fun engaging content for our half term activities. We created 20
activity craft bundles for children to collect from the library and then follow

80

along on facebook during half term. To ensure no one lost out if they couldn’t
collect a pack, we provided a list of materials online so children could print
out their own at home and join in the fun!
4.29

We were delighted to work with Saint Pius and Saint Pauls for read and
review opportunities with The Reading Agency. We also delivered two story
time sessions with Saint Pius over zoom

4.30

The Archive Centre opened to the public on Wednesday 14 April. We are
open Wednesdays, Thursdays and Fridays between 9.30am and 1 pm. We
have three spaces so researchers have to book and let us know what they
would like to look at so we can get them ready. We can retrieve further
items if necessary. - It is great to have researchers back and they are so
pleased to be able to access original documents again.

4.31

The Archivist ran a session for 2 classes of pupils at Greengate Junior
School on Victorian Barrow using Microsoft Teams. The teachers printed off
copies of the documents included in the PowerPoint presentation so that
they could look at them during the presentation. We are looking forward to
welcoming school groups back into the centre when regulations allow.

4.32

A session was also run for Year 3 of Dane Ghyll School who were studying
the effect of World War 2 on Barrow. We looked at the Barrow Blitz and the
evacuation of school children to Westmorland in 1941. The teacher came in
beforehand to pick up some labels so the children could make evacuation
labels using the details from the scheme set up by Barrow Borough Council
in May 1941.

4.33

Further activity included speaking to 24 members of Ulverston Rotary Club
on the work of the Archive Service one evening via Zoom.

4.34

A great deal of work has been done by the Archive team over recent months
in answering email enquiries from people who cannot come to the Archive
Centre. It was decided that staff could do 30 minutes free research for a
customer and provide them with digital images of documents. This has been
well received by researchers who appreciate the time spent helping them.
Children’s Trust Board - Barrow Children & Families Partnership

4.35

The Board continues to meet regularly and as part of further developing its
governance elected a second vice chair from the 3rd sector and this will be
through Furness Youth Work Partnership rotating the representation for
each meeting.

4.36

At the June meeting there were a number of updates including the Front
Door (Intake Team) 6 month pilot project; Greengate/Ramsden School
proposal of Team around the community and case studies that are being
discussed at each meeting.

4.37

Working groups had been set up to look at specific work streams:



Vulnerable children, Early Help and Prevention Earlier early help,
universal services, neighbourhood approach (two working groups
amalgamated)
Team around the school/community, keen to work with
Greengate/Ramsden Schools.

81

4.38

The working groups are now developing action plans and carrying out work
around the key priorities they have identified, with projects able to be
undertaken to actively focus and deliver these priorities.
Local Committee Budget

4.39

Members have continued to monitor and review their budgets in line with the
significantly changed situation, including the additional funding that has been
received to support communities and activity during the pandemic.

4.40

As part of this three allocations have been received from the Contain
Outbreak Mitigation Fund (COMF):
o £50,000 from the Harnessing Capacity workstream
o £200,000 from the Improving Outdoor Spaces (Area Based Events
and Activities) workstream
o £50,000 from the Improving Outdoor Spaces (Area Based Events and
Activities) workstream

4.41

To date members have considered three applications against the
Harnessing Capacity funding outlined below.
Organisation

Project

Cost

Furness Education and Summer Holiday Activity and £15,000
Skills Partnership
Food support extension
Walney
Trust

Community Emergency Items

Safa Cumbria

£10,000

Online mental health and £10,000
wellbeing support
Balance £15,000

4.42

In relation to the £200,000 funding stream relating to outdoor spaces
Members have held two separate workshops to consider the potential
schemes that would benefit from this funding. A number of proposals were
put forward and considered by Members. At the Informal Local Committee
meeting of 18 June Members proposed a shortlist of schemes that they wish
to see progressed using this funding. These are:
Scheme

Description of Activity

Indicative
costing
Westfield Trail
Repair and improve surface where £60,000
necessary and cut back vegetation.
Improve signage where appropriate
Biggar Bank
Repair and improve sections of the footpath £60,000
to improve accessibility
Old Monks Trail
Improve the surfacing as appropriate, cut £30,000
back vegetation, Look at improving the
issue with flooding.
Mill
Brow
– Clear vegetation from the footpath
£10,000
Abbey Road to
Park
Road
Roundabout

82

Install / replace
benches
Heritage
and
Cultural
Information
eg
audio
trails,
heritage signage
etc on walks

Look to repair / replace / install benches Overall
working with the Borough Council
allocation
Engage with communities and partners to £40,000
develop information to encourage more
people to access walks and learn about the
history and heritage of the borough

4.43

Members are asked to formally agree these schemes outlined above.

4.44

In addition to these Covid specific funds, following the decision at Full
Council in February it was agreed that in the financial year 2021/22 each
Local Committee will receive a one-off amount of money to support
environmental enhancements. An extract from the Council papers below
outlines this in more detail.
Environment Fund – one-off increase to invest in environmental activities to
enhance the lived environment in localities. This includes £1.2m to the Local
Committees. The COVID-19 lockdown restrictions have brought into sharp
focus the benefits to individuals and community wellbeing from the local
environment. Local Committee revenue budgets are finite – this additional
resource for 2020/21 only will provide much needed investment for specific
environmental enhancements

4.45

Members have since agreed at Informal Local Committee on 11 May that
they would like to see the full amount of the Barrow Local Committee
allocation (£200,000) spent on tree planting. Members agreed that they
wish to see this begin on Abbey Road as the gateway to the town, and then
subject to available funding move to Hartington Street and other appropriate
roads.

4.46

A Tree working group has also been established in the Borough in
partnership with Local Committee, Barrow Borough Council, the Rotary,
Woodland Trust, Wildlife Trust and other partners invited as appropriate.
This group met on 13 May and supported the proposed approach to
planning as outlined above. Based on this work Barrow is also being put
forward in a bid to the Local Authority Treescapes Fund to supplement this
tree planting and work.

4.47

Further to the above spend Local Committee have received a number of
additional funding requests as outlined below for consideration:
i.

Barrow Borough Council confirmed that they wish to “establish a
process, such as a Poverty Truth Commission, to identify and
remediate financial inequalities with particular reference to the existing
vulnerable residents and the potential for a large cohort of newly
vulnerable residents, due to secondary impacts of the outbreak.
The Borough Council have already identified much of the funding for
this work, and at the Local Committee meeting of 10 March 2021 asked
if Local Committee would consider funding £10,000 towards this work
over two years. As this aligns directly with Local Committees priorities,
in particular the priority of “improving health and wellbeing and tackling

83

poverty,” Members supported £5,000 towards this from the 2020/21
Local Committee Budget and agreed to look to fund the additional
£5,000 from the 2021/22 budget if possible.
Local Committee are therefore asked to consider funding a further
£5,000 to the Borough Council to support a Poverty Truth Commission
from General Provisions.
ii.

Local Committee have been approached by Active Cumbria seeking
funding for the Active Start Programme. Details of the proposal are
outlined below for Members consideration, and Local Committee are
asked to consider a grant of £10,000 from its 0-19 services budget to
Active Cumbria to support pilot a project for Active Start.

Active Start Programme Proposal
Summary
Active Start is an early year’s programme for children between the ages of 2
and 7 with the prime focus of using Physical Activity and Active Play to
support a child to be healthy, to learn and be active for life. The programme
was originally developed to support settings across West Cumbria through
funding secured via the Sellafield Social Impact Fund.
Active Cumbria are keen to deliver the programme at scale and provide
opportunities to support children across all areas of the County. The original
programme provides opportunities from the early years through to Key Stage
1 transition and this proposal presents two options for consideration.
To ensure that the programme reaches and supports children and families
most in need, the focus will be on working with our early years colleagues to
identify targeted settings across Barrow, seeking to narrow the gap in
achievement and health inequalities whilst supporting a child’s overall school
readiness.
In addition, the programme will increase the engagement of parents and
carers with their children through increased physical activity contributing to
the child’s physical, social, and emotional development
Aims and Objectives


To increase the confidence and competence of practitioners in the early
years to deliver and embed the Early Years Foundation Stage through
the vehicle of physical activity.



To increase physical literacy and participation in physical activity
amongst early years children (aged 2-5) and positively impact on their
school readiness. Improving children’s physical and mental wellbeing,
social and emotional development, with a particular focus on resilience,
management of difficult feelings, kindness, and self-belief.



To connect parents and carers with their children and with each other
through increased physical activity.

Evidence of Need
Physical activity, active play and movement are perfect ways to develop the
whole child. They not only help children become more physically literate but
provide great opportunities to support a range of key abilities including
health and happiness, social, physical, creativity and problem solving.

84

It is recommended that children under 5 should be taking part in 180 minutes
of physical activity per day however evidence sadly outlines that for many
this is not attained.
“Nationally, 90% of Girls and 91% of Boys aged 2-4 years are not achieving
the daily minimum recommended CMO physical activity guideline for health
and wellbeing.” (The British Heart Foundation National Centre for Physical
Activity and Health 2014)
Of equal concern is the rise in sedentary behaviours in young children and
the subsequent impact this has upon their longer-term health outcomes.
“With increasing changes to lifestyles and new social norms around being
sedentary becoming widespread, we now have children dying five years
earlier than the previous generation due to inactivity.” (NIKE Designed to
Move 2013)
Furthermore, the Covid19 pandemic has exacerbated these issues further
which predicts the disadvantaged gap widening between our poorest and
most affluent communities.
Children gain many benefits from an early age and it is important that we
encourage and provide as many opportunities as possible for them to form
their movement vocabulary. The Active Start programme has been
developed to assist practitioners, parents, carers, and wider family members
to do just that.
The Proposal
The Active Start programme will primarily focus upon identifying and
supporting settings within the most disadvantaged communities across
Barrow using local data and insight linked to free school meals and
childhood obesity. The evidence suggests that there is a clear correlation
between inactive behaviours, poorer health outcomes and lower attainment
levels in schools especially for those children accessing free school meals.
The programme itself will provide free training sessions and accompanying
resources for those participating. In addition, parents and carers will be
supported through Family Learning courses aimed at increasing parent and
child engagement through the means of physical activity and active play.
Training
Training sessions aim to equip practitioners/teachers to support a child’s
physical development and help them to develop a wide movement
vocabulary. Providing them with the confidence, competence, and inspiration
to deliver all aspects of the early years’ foundation stage through movement
and play. Sessions will develop the following:




an understanding of physical literacy and its importance
increased knowledge in relation to movement activities
skills and confidence to use physical activity and active play to support
delivery of the wider early years’ foundation stage curriculum

Resources
All those attending will be provided with a resource pack providing practical
ideas and guidance to support increased physical activity opportunities
within their settings.

85

The resources provide many movement opportunities for children to become
physically literate and develop their physical abilities whilst also outlining
how the skills developed through these activities impacts on other crucial life
skills.
Furthermore, resources outline how each activity may be used to address
both the prime and specific areas or learning within the early years’
foundation stage curriculum.
Family Learning
A bespoke programme has been developed in partnership with the County
Council’s Family Learning team. Each participating family attending the
programme receives a take home pack (activity cards and an equipment
bag) to support further engagement in physical activity and their child’s
development.
Evaluation and Monitoring
A series of outputs and outcomes have been identified to monitor the overall
success and impact of the programme. Several processes and tools have
already been developed to monitor the wider Sellafield funded project and it
is proposed to adopt these. An interim report will be producing highlighting
outputs achieved and initial feedback with an end of programme report
produced 12 months later providing reference to the outcomes achieved and
the overall impact of the programme.
Outputs
This project will enable the following Schools and settings to be the focus for
delivery. Utilising the Schools for recruitment and training and then using the
appropriate community settings for family learning courses to be hosted.
Outcomes










Increased confidence and competence of practitioners in the early years
to deliver the early years foundation stage through physical activity and
active play.
Increased confidence and competence of Key Stage 1 teachers to deliver
the National Primary curriculum through physical activity and movement.
Increased knowledge and awareness of the CMO Physical Activity
Guidelines relating to Physical Activity for Practitioners in early years.
Increased awareness of the Healthy Families Cumbria Pledge.
Targeted children aged 2-5 years demonstrate improved skills,
knowledge, and attitudes to physical activity.
Targeted children aged 2-5 years increase their participation in physical
activity and play.
Parents and carers feel more connected to their children and each other
and are confident in being active together.
Parents and carers feel better equipped to facilitate play and physical
activity with their children.
Parents and Carers benefit from adult learning with a particular focus on:
o understanding of the milestones in child development
o importance of movement to health and wellbeing, sleep patterns and
social skills
o movement vocabulary development

86

o basic maths
o basic literacy
4.48

The Service Level Agreement for 2021/22 for school crossing patrol delivery
is attached at Appendix 2 for information. It is not proposed at this time for
additional funding to be vired to the school crossing patrol budget, but that
Members keep this budget under review and re-considered at future next
Local Committee meetings

4.49

The discretionary budget delegated to Local Committee is detailed in
Appendix 1, providing the latest financial position including the committee
expenditure and the remaining unallocated resources up to May 2021. The
budget allocations that Members reviewed in their workshop in April 2021
are also outlined in Appendix 3 for Members consideration.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Local Committee can choose to support the recommendations outlined in
this report, amend them and choose to commit different levels of funding
within their delegated budget, or not to accept the recommendations

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct resource implications arising from recommendation 3.1
to note the updates in this report.

6.2

The financial position for the revenue budget devolved to Local Committee
for items other than Highways at the end of May is as set out in Appendix 1
(Paragraph 4.49). The budget allocation shown is as agreed by Council in
February before the proposed changes in recommendation 3.2.

6.3

Local Committee may allocate the discretionary element of the revenue
budget during the course of the financial year to meet its priorities and
objectives, subject to corporate policy and service standards
(Recommendation 3.2 and Appendix 3)

6.4

If Local Committee decide to agree the allocations in recommendation 3.3
the Contain Outbreak Mitigation Fund Improving Outdoor Spaces budget
would be fully committed.

6.5

If Local Committee decide to agree the grants in recommendations 3.4 and
3.5 they could be met from the uncommitted funds within the discretionary
budget.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

87

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report provides the Local Committee with a comprehensive update on
its Communities budgets and related matters delegated to the Committee.

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director - Corporate, Customer and Community Services
25 June 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Local Committee Budget
Appendix 2 – School Crossing Patrol Service Level Agreement
Appendix 3 – Local Committee Budget Allocations
.
Electoral Divisions:

All Barrow

Executive Decision

Yes

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

N/A

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

N/A

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
[including Local Committees]
No previous relevant decisions

88

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Tracey Ingham 0790 1884620, tracey.ingham@cumbria.gov.uk

89

This page is intentionally left blank

BAROW LOCAL COMMITTEE:

2021/22

SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT:
Discretionary budgets total allocation 2021/22 Council 18/02/21
Budget Allocation as Council Before Review By Local Committee
General Provision
Community Grants
School Crossing Patrols
0-19 Services
Total Allocation
Budget Sector

91

Discretionary Budgets
General Provision
Community Grants
School Crossing Patrols (see note)
0-19 Services

Other Revenue Budgets
Neighbourhood Development Team
Money Advice Contract - CAB
Environment Fund

LOCAL COMMITTEE COMMUNITIES
TOTAL

31 May 2021

167,156
53,300
0
30,866
82,593
166,759

2021/22
Original
Budget

Balance
B/Fwd
see note

Virement
In

Virement
Out

Revised
Budget

Other
Contribs

2021/22
Spending
Limit

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

Remaining
Actual
Commitments Expenditure

£

£

Expenditure Unallocated
And
Resources or
Commitments (Variance)
£

£

53,300
0
30,866
82,593
166,759

31,350
6,563
4,694
23,542
66,149

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

84,650
6,563
35,560
106,135
232,908

5,000
0
0
0
5,000

89,650
6,563
35,560
106,135
237,908

34,024
0
31,322
7,500
72,846

1,660
9,563
4,238
16,042
31,503

35,684
9,563
35,560
23,542
104,349

53,966
(3,000)
0
82,593
133,559

87,798
57,060
200,000
344,858

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

87,798
57,060
200,000
344,858

0
0
0
0

87,798
57,060
200,000
344,858

0
57,060
200,000
257,060

87,798
0
0
87,798

87,798
57,060
200,000
344,858

0
0
0
0

511,617

66,149

0

0

577,766

5,000

582,766

329,906

119,301

449,207

133,559

This page is intentionally left blank

SCHOOL CROSSING PATROLS – SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR 2021/22 WITH
BARROW LOCAL COMMITTEE
The 2021/22 agreement will continue to embrace the following service aspects:


Training – all school crossing patrols will continue to receive refresher road safety
training, including an update on current road traffic legislation as it relates to their role.



Customer Care – all school crossing patrols will continue to receive guidance on the
importance and benefits of customer care with particular reference to the needs of
children and accompanying adults.



Uniforms and equipment – the requirements of all school crossing patrols are
continually assessed to ensure that they comply fully with current legislation. Statutory
items of uniform (hat and coat) and equipment will be issued accordingly.



Management activities – Orian Solutions Ltd will pay all salaries and standard
employment costs for each individual crossing patrol and recruit any replacements as
directed. We will continue to liaise with associated schools to ensure effective
communication and information to parents. We will also work closely with schools to
make the crossing patrol service sufficiently flexible to accommodate any changes to
departure or arrival times for breakfast clubs, after school clubs and special events.

However, site reviews, public consultation exercises and traffic surveys will remain the
responsibility of the Local Committee and as such, Orian Solutions Ltd will not be involved.
Similarly, Orian Solutions Ltd will not be responsible for enforcement of any local parking
restrictions or alterations that may be required to the highway, including road markings, hazard
warning lights or flashing beacons.
Legal information
The school crossing patrol service complies with the legislative requirements of the School
Crossing Patrol Act 1953, School Crossing Patrol Order 1954 and the Road Traffic Regulation
Act 1984, which was subsequently amended by the Transport Act 2000 (section 270).
The law gives a school crossing patrol appointed by an appropriate authority the power to stop
traffic on condition that they are wearing a uniform approved by the Secretary of State and are
using the prescribed sign.
The law states that even where a crossing patrol is provided, parents remain responsible for
ensuring their children’s safety on their journey to and from school.
Service contact
Graeme Gunn: telephone number 01228 404722 / e-mail Graeme.gunn@orian.co.uk

93

School crossing patrols in Barrow

School

1
2
4
5
6
8
10
11
12
13

Barrow Island Primary School (Island Road)
Brisbane Park School (Blake Street)
Greengate Junior School (Rawlinson Street)
Ireleth St Peter’s School (Kirkby Road)
Newbarns Primary School (Lesh Lane)
South Walney Infant School (Ocean Road)
St Mary’s School (Coronation Drive, Dalton)
St Paul’s CE School (Hawcoat Lane)
St Pius X RC School (Schneider Road)
Victoria Infant School (Oxford Street)

Additional
crossing
facility
None
None
Pelican
Puffin
None
Zebra
None
None
Zebra
None

Filled (F)
or vacant
(V) post
F
F
V
F
F
F
F
F
F
F

Weekly
hours/
mins
5.25
8.10
7.30
7.05
5.50
8.45
5.00
7.30
6.00
8.20

4 sites

1 vacant

69.35

Vacant Posts
4

Greengate Junior School (Rawlinson St) – vacant from Nov 2015

All 10 sites for 38 academic weeks during 2021/22 @ £18.00 per hour = £47,594.98 per
annum + VAT
(Based on current filled posts the cost 2021/22 @ £18.00 per hour = £42,464.77 per annum
plus VAT)
Within this service level agreement, the Local Committee will continue to be invoiced for
delivered kerbside hours only.

94

Barrow Local Committee Allocations 2021-22
Budget Headings

2019/20
Indicative
Allocation
(£)

Proposed
Expenditure
(£)

Reducing
Balance
(£)

Highways Revenue

793,576

793,576

0

Area Support Team

87,798

87,798

0

Money Advice - CAB

57,060

57,060

0

938,434

938,434

0

Total Local Committee Specific Items

General Provision

Comments

These non discretionary items may only be used for the
purposes for which they were given

53,300
30,000

Area Planning - To support Local Committee Area Planning Work

47,737

to support area planning projects and work in the Borough

30,000
25,042

strategic
to support groups

95

Community Grants

Area Plan Priority - To support cumbria's early help strategy which enables
support for children families and young people
0-19 Grants
CYP Working Group Strategic Allocation
11-19 Universal Services Allocation

57,551
25,042

Area Plan Priority - Promoting Sustainable Economic Growth and Creating Jobs
Business Improvement District (per year for 5 years)

BID levies are the first call on the General Provision allocation.
Notional allocation is based on previous years figures.

3,114

Area Plan Priority - Improving Health and Wellbeing and Tackling Poverty

School Crossing Patrols - Commissioning
Discretionary Balance Remaining to Allocate
Total Local Committee Discretionary Items

Total Local Committee Revenue Budget

30,866

30,866

166,759

166,759

0
0

1,105,193

1,105,193

0

General Provisions Unallocated Budegt
These discretionary items may be reallocated subject to being
within the powers available to Local Committees as set out in the
Constitution and consistent to the Council's overall objectives
and priorities.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
LOCAL COMMITTEE CHAIRS AND LEADERSHIP
Minutes of a virtual meeting of the Local Committee Chairs and Leadership held on
Friday, 29 January 2021 at 10.00 am
PRESENT:
Mr SF Young (Chair)
Mr AL Barry
Mr N Cotton
Mr GD Cook
Mr P Dew
Mr KR Hamilton
Mr K Hitchen
Mr W McEwan

Mr AJ Markley
Mr J Mallinson
Mr P Thornton
Mr C Weber
Mr D Whipp
Mr D Wilson

Also in Attendance:Ms K Fairclough
Mr J Beard
Ms G Elliott
Mr A Farrar
Ms T Ingham
Mr P Musgrave
Ms L Shaw
Mr P Greenup
Ms A Hatcher
Mr P Turney
Ms C Beckett

44

-

Chief Executive
Chief Fire Officer
Area Manager - Copeland
Democratic Services Officer
Area Manager - Barrow
Area Manager - Carlisle
Area Manager - Allerdale
Acting Assistant Director for Highways and Transport
Major Programmes Director
Senior Manager - Accountancy (Deputy s151 Officer)
Public Health Locality Manager

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.
45

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 1 December 2020 be
agreed.
46

BORDERLANDS UPDATE

The Major Programmes Director provided members with an update on the
Borderlands Inclusive Growth Deal. It was a £350 million investment over 10 years
with strategy led projects and programmes that complemented each other. There had

97

been progress made in recent months and Cabinet had agreed to enter the Deal
Agreement for the Borderlands Inclusive Growth Deal at its meeting on 4 February
2021. The public signing of the Deal was anticipated in early March 2021.
The Major Programmes Director also provided members with updates on previously
reported projects, including







Digital Voucher Scheme
Carlisle Station
Carlisle Citadel
Place Programme
See More Lake District Cycling
Hadrian’s Wall & the wider Roman frontier

The Major Programmes Director provided members with an outline of the next steps
on See More Lake District Cycling and Hadrian’s Wall & the wider Roman frontier.
The Chair of South Lakeland Local Committee asked if hyperlinks could be included
to the projects as detailed in the report with more information provided on the website
on the individual projects within the Deal. The Major Programmes Director agreed
that hyperlinks would be included in future reports and would liaise with the
Borderlands PMO to update the Borderlands website. (ACTION: AH)
The Vice Chair of Allerdale Local Committee asked for clarification of the risk to the
County Council if projects were to overrun and costs increased as a result.
The Chief Executive reassured members that the County Council had assessed the
risks as part of the assessment of the Deal Agreement. She also assured members
that individual business cases would be considered by Cabinet at each stage of the
project and the risks would be assessed for each case.
The Deputy Leader reassured members that Cabinet had considered the risks
carefully and understood them, and whilst there were risks associated with the Deal
there were also rewards, and this was considered as part of the assessment.
The Chair of Allerdale Local Committee asked how much money would be coming
into Cumbria as a result of the Borderlands Deal.
The Major Programmes Director outlined that there was the potential for up to £200
million of funding coming into Cumbria and Northumberland with Cumbria’s share to
reflect the population of Cumbria relative to Northumberland’s population.
The Chair of Eden Local Committee had raised concerns at the last meeting about
the Digital Voucher Scheme, and he noted that to date there had still only been £1.85
million allocated from the £4 million available. He was concerned that despite the
Digital Voucher Scheme being available some of his residents were still unable to
gain access to suitable broadband delivery. This was affecting businesses and also
students in his division.

98

The Major Programmes Director understood the concerns regarding the Digital
Voucher Scheme and reminded members that the County Council was not able to
directly deliver broadband for residents. Discussions were currently taking place with
Government to see if the deadlines for the digital voucher scheme could be extended.
There was also a national commitment to undertake the deployment of full fibre
through the Government’s F20 programme.
The Chair of Barrow Local Committee provided an update to members on progress
with the Place Programme for Dalton.
The Chair of Copeland Local Committee asked for an update on Hadrian’s Wall. The
Major Programme Director informed members that an application had been submitted
to the Nuclear Decommissioning Agency for funding to develop the business case for
the Hadrian’s Wall cycle corridor but a decision was still awaited.
A discussion took place regarding the Levelling Up Fund that was announced in the
Spending Review. It was AGREED that this be added to the agenda for further
discussion at the next meeting. The Major Programmes Director informed members
that the prospectus for the fund was due to be launched in the near future.
RESOLVED,

47

that members
(1)

noted the progress on the Borderlands Inclusive Growth Deal
as outlined in the report;

(2)

note that the Levelling Up Fund would be added to the agenda
for the next meeting.

LOCAL COMMITTEE BUDGET ALLOCATIONS 2021/22

Members considered a Briefing Note from the Director of Finance which provided an
update on the development of the Budget for 2021/22 set within the context of the
Medium-Term Financial Plan (2021-2026) with particular reference to the Local
Committees.
The Senior Manager - Accountancy took members through the report. He explained
that in preparation for the Council Budget for 2021/22, Cabinet would consider
increasing the Highways Budget for a specific allocation of funding of £1.2million for
2021/22 only for Environmental Improvements to support the highways revenue
maintenance activities. £0.200m would be allocated to each Local Committee.
The purpose of the ring-fenced fund would be to support environmental improvements
for enhanced verge maintenance, tree maintenance and replacement, and footpath
maintenance. The funding would be time limited – to the 2021/22 financial year and
would not be able to be carried forward. Local Committees were encouraged to work
with their Districts, Parishes and Town Councils to make best use of the money,
including identifying match funding where possible.

99

The Senior Manager - Accountancy informed members that short-term additional
capacity would be included in the Economy and Infrastructure Directorate to support
complimentary local environmental and biodiversity activities.
He then took members through the rest of the detail continued in the report.
The Deputy Leader updated members on the current financial position of Cumbria
County Council. He highlighted the Environment Fund and commented it was to be
used to implement projects in their communities that had the support of residents but
for which there was no capacity within the Highways Budget. He hoped that Parish
and Town Councils would provide match funding.
The Chair highlighted that there were no proposed revenue savings in 2021/22 that
would directly impact on the Local Committee allocations for 2021/22. The
Environment Fund should be used on schemes to make small scale improvements to
local areas. He also highlighted the additional £50,000 increase to the Community
Services Budget for each Local Committee.
The Chief Executive reminded members of the uncertainty that possible Local
Government Reform had on long-term budget planning for Cumbria County Council.
She felt the additional funds were a positive way to devolve responsibility to a local
level.
A discussion then took place on the types of possible scheme the additional
Environment Fund could be spent on.
The Chair of Barrow Local Committee asked for clarification on what would happen
to local committee underspends as part of the budget process. The Chair reassured
members that there were no plans to claw back any money from local committees this
year.
A discussion took place about the Appleby Horse Fair Traffic Management and the
effect the cost of this had on budgets for Eden Local Committee. The Chair of Eden
Local Committee informed members that Eden Local Committee was considering a
referral to Cabinet on this.
RESOLVED, that Members noted the proposed Revenue and Capital allocations for
Local Committees in 2021/22. Cabinet would consider its budget
proposal to Council at its meeting on 4 February 2021.
48

USE OF IN HOUSE TRANSPORT FOR COMMUNITY PROVISION

The Assistant Director Highways and Transport gave members a presentation on the
use of in-house transport for community provision which included:




Current Situation
Bus Service Operators Grant
Other Funding Bids
Identification of routes

100

 Bus Support Grant
 Next Steps
The Vice Chair of South Lakeland Local Committee commented on the proposed
implementation of Phase 1 of the Bus Support Grant, and noted that implementation
was to begin in April 2021. He felt this timescale was challenging.
The Chair acknowledged that the timeframe for implementation was challenging but
reassured members that everything was on track with the Traffic Commissioner
submission to begin the implementation in April 2021.
The Chair of Eden Local Committee welcomed the engagement with local members
for Phase 2. He noted there was no timescale for this and asked if the Assistant
Director had a timescale for implementation for Phase 2.
The Assistant Director Highways and Transport responded that he wanted to
commence consultation with members and Local Committees as soon as possible
and was hopeful of implementation in summer 2021.
The Vice Chair commented that it was important to do something and acknowledged
that the present situation with the Covid pandemic did indeed present challenges. He
also commented that it was important not to run empty buses. The buses would have
to be used and not considered as an “insurance policy” by residents if the scheme
were to be successful.
The Chair spoke of a financial viability test. He noted that Cumbria County Council
had to meet the on-going cost for the project, and hoped the scheme would be
successful. However, he also felt the scheme should be sustainable, and if there was
no demand the buses should not carry on running if the service was not being used.
The Chair of Allerdale Local Committee noted that bus operators had tried and failed
in the past with these routes, and wondered if there would be a better chance of
success if the bus operators rather than Cumbria County Council ran the services.
The Chair of Copeland Local Committee commented on the engagement with local
members on Phase 2, and asked if parish councils could be involved in Phase 2, and
if so what type of engagement would be expected from them.
The Assistant Director Highways and Transport responded that parish councils should
be involved as stakeholders, and he was hopeful they would be able to assist with
information on viability and demand. He added that timetables for the buses would be
key to the success of the Phase 2 implementation.
The Chair agreed with the sentiment that the County Council needed to implement
the service first in order to assess the success. If it proved to be successful then the
Council could look to expand the scheme to other locations.

101

49

REMOVAL OF ROADSIDE TREES

The Chair of Barrow Local Committee provided members with an update on the work
of a newly formed Tree Task and Finish Group in the Barrow area. This Group was
a partnership group and included County Council, Borough Council, Rotary and
Woodlands Trust. The new Environment funding aligns with this locality partnership
working and aspiration, although the Chair of Barrow Local Committee expressed
concern that after the funding ends in 1 year the good work stops.
The Chair remarked that with the Environment funding much can be achieved and he
noted that the Council budget had a great degree of uncertainty in future years.
The Vice Chair noted that the Environment funding provided an opportunity for similar
scheme and if there were evidence of schemes taken place with the Environment
funding then Cumbria County Council would look to continue the funding.
The Chair mentioned that this was an ideal opportunity to seek funding from outside
Cumbria County Council this would add value to projects and make the Environment
fund more successful and would expand what the scheme would achieve.
50

FORWARD PLAN

AGREED, that the following items be added to the agenda for the next meeting:




51

Borderlands Update
Local Government Reform
Covid Recovery
Share A Smile
Levelling up Fund
DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 27 April 2021 at 10am at a venue to be confirmed.

The meeting ended at 11.55 am

102

LOCAL COMMITTEE CHAIRS AND LEADERSHIP
Minutes of a meeting of the Local Committee Chairs and Leadership held virtually
on Microsoft Teams on Tuesday, 27 April 2021 at 10.00 am

PRESENT:
Mr SF Young (Chair)
Mr AL Barry
Mr N Cotton
Mr GD Cook
Mr P Dew
Mr KR Hamilton
Mr K Hitchen

Mr W McEwan
Mr AJ Markley
Mr P Thornton
Mr C Weber
Mr D Whipp
Mr D Wilson

Also in Attendance:Ms K Fairclough
Mr J Beard
Ms A Hatcher
Ms T Ingham
Ms A Jones
Mrs K Johnson
Mr P Musgrave
Dr D Roberts

-

Ms L Shaw
Mr N Wright

-

52

Chief Executive
Chief Fire Officer
Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure
Area Manager - Barrow
Executive Director - Economy and Infrastructure
Area Manager - South Lakeland
Area Manager - Carlisle
Executive Director - Corporate, Customer and
Community Services
Area Manager - Allerdale
Area Manager – Eden

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Ms D Earl.
53

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED,

54

that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 29 January 2021
be agreed.

LEVELLING UP AND COMMUNITY RENEWAL FUND

The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure gave a presentation on the
Levelling Up Fund (LUF) and the Community Renewal Fund (CRF), specifically in
relation to:-

103







CRF Timescales
Emerging CRF Ideas
LUF Eligibility
Emerging LUF Ideas
CCC Transport Bid for green infrastructure

The Chair commented that in relation to the LUF the timescales for submission of
bids in round 1 was really short, and that all bids would be expected to have the
support of the local Member of Parliament to have any chance of success. Bids
submitted without the backing of the local MP were extremely unlikely to be
successful. He felt the scheme with the best chance of success for Cumbria was in
Barrow because it was in a Priority 1 area.
He queried whether a local authority that had received funding from round 1 bid
would still be eligible to receive further funding in round 2.
The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure clarified that any successful bid in
round 1 would not be able to apply again for further funding in round 2.
The Chair of Copeland Local Committee asked for further clarification regarding the
bid process and whether the County Council green infrastructure transport proposal
could be aligned with the Environment funding 2021/22.
The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure responded to say that it would be
possible for the bid to complement the Environment funding however they would not
align in timing for match funding. The deadline for round 1 submissions was 18
June and the deadlines for round 2 were not yet known. ACTION: It was agreed
that a briefing note on the LUF proposal and eligibility would be circulated to the
committee.
The Chair of South Lakeland Local Committee noted the Green Transport
Infrastructure proposal for a round 2 bid and welcomed this. He supported bids
which would promote all areas of the county. He asked for clarification on whether
the support of the MP’s was essential.
The Executive Director - Economy and Infrastructure informed members that there
had, so far, been meetings with 5 MP’s. They were all in support in principle of the
proposal at this concept stage.
The Chair of Barrow Local Committee remarked that Barrow previously had a bid
fail regarding electric buses and wondered if that bid could be resubmitted.
The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure noted that Barrow Borough Council
was working on a round 1 submission based on their unsuccessful FHSF bid and
the bus interchange outside the Town Hall may be part of their LUF bid.

104

The Executive Director - Economy and Infrastructure commented that there were
on-going conversations with Department for Transport about electric buses and that
these would continue. She felt there may be further opportunities to secure funding
for this type of scheme.
The Chair of Allerdale Local Committee was aware that funding applications for
Ramsay Brow had been submitted before for funding, but had been unsuccessful.
However, he felt it would be important to support the LUF bid from Allerdale
Borough Council to try to secure funding at every opportunity for this scheme.
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure for her
presentation.
55

CYCLING AND WALKING UPDATE

The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure provided members with an update
on Cycling and Walking, specifically in relation to:





National and Local Context and Strategy
Programme Objectives
Programme Components
Local Cycling and Walking Investment Plan’s (LCWIP)
Public Consultation and Engagement

The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure advised that details on the
forthcoming public consultation on three LCWIP’s for Barrow, Carlisle and Kendal
would be shared with Local Committees at the beginning of May.
The Vice Chair remarked that one of the major stumbling blocks for cycling and
walking projects was the ongoing maintenance once a scheme had been
implemented. The County Council did not currently have any specific budget for
ongoing maintenance and he felt lobbying should be undertaken with Government
to get this resolved.
A discussion then took place around the need to create safe and secure parking for
cycles and public repair stations, and whether cyclists would be expected to pay for
parking areas. It was noted that secure cycle parking could be located with EV
charging points.
The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure noted the points raised in relation
to maintenance and security. These issues would be considered further down the
line, once funding was in place to enable the schemes to happen.
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure for her
presentation.

105

56

BORDERLANDS UPDATE

The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure provided members with an update
on the Borderlands Inclusive Growth Deal highlighted that the Deal Agreement was
signed on 18 March 2021 and has now moved into the delivery phase. The report
noted progress on delivery in particular:






Place Programme
Carlisle Stations and Citadels
Destination Borderlands - See More Lake District
Destination Borderlands - Hadrian’s Wall and wider Roman Frontier
Digital Voucher Scheme
Digital Infrastructure

The Chair of South Lakeland Local Committee was disappointed to note that
Cumbria had only received £1.657m out of the £3.8m available via the Digital
Voucher Scheme. He had expected this to be higher.
The Major Programmes Director commented that it was anticipated to be a 50-50
split however the take up had been greater in Northumberland.
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure for her update.
57

LOCAL COMMITTEE ENVIRONMENT FUND 2021/22 UPDATE

The Executive Director - Corporate Customer and Community Services presented
the report and members noted the updates from the individual areas. Each area
had a long list of potential schemes with deliverability and cost key drivers. The
total number of schemes exceeded the funding available so the criteria for
assessment would be important.
The Chair noted there was a wide range of activities that the fund could be used for.
He remarked that the decision on the chosen schemes was business critical as the
funding needed to be spent in this financial year.
The Executive Director - Economy and Infrastructure reminded members that many
of the proposed projects were time critical as the work needed to be programmed
during the summer months.
Each of the Local Committee Chairs and/or Area Managers then gave a round table
update on schemes in their individual areas.
The Vice Chair was delighted to hear about all the proposed schemes in each area,
however, he reminded members that currently funding was only available for this
financial year.
The Executive Director - Economy and Infrastructure was also encouraged to hear
about the proposed schemes and she would investigate whether any other funding
pots may be available to fund these schemes going forward.

106

The Chair thanked the Executive Director for her report.
58

LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM

The Chief Executive provided members with an update on Local Government
Reform. Public consultation had closed on 19 April, and it was expected that the
Council would know the outcome of the consultation in mid-late July.
59

COVID RECOVERY

The Chief Executive provided members with an update on Covid Recovery.
Recently Cumbria Police had handed over the responsibility for Covid recovery to
Cumbria County Council, as the pandemic had now moved into the recovery phase,
as opposed to the response phase. Cumbria County Council would consider the
impact of Covid at a locality and district level. There would be a draft recovery
consultation strategy produced but the Chief Executive felt that some aspects of the
recovery would take years to implement.
The Chief Executive then discussed the issue of moving back to face to face
meetings with members. A court case was heard on 21 April to consider whether,
under the current legislation, local authorities could continue to hold remote
meetings. The current legislation ended on 6 May 2021, and the ruling from the
High Court was still awaited. If the appeal was unsuccessful the County Council
would have no option but to return to face to face meetings.
The Chief Executive had met recently with the 3 group leaders to discuss this.
There had been a range of views expressed by the Group Leaders, and the Chief
Executive asked for soundings from the Local Committee Chairs and Vice Chairs.
She asked all of the Chairs to work with their Area Managers to identify which items
for the next round of local committee meetings was business critical and could wait
until the next meeting. All Chair agreed to consider this.
A brief round table discussion them took place on the preferred options from the
members, and again there were differing views.
The Chief Executive thanked the members for their input.
60

FORWARD PLAN

AGREED, that the following item be added to the agenda for the next meeting: Borderlands Place Programme
The Chief Executive raised the possibility of agenda items from the People
Directorate and the broader health agenda.

107

61

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 5 July 2021 at 10am at a venue to be confirmed.

The meeting ended at 11.55 am

108

